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Combined management report

of the Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG and the group 2019

The present report is a summarized management report for Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG and the group. It was drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the
German Accounting Standard (DRS) 20. As in the previous year, the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applied in the European Union, were used for
the 2019 consolidated financial statements. The annual financial statements of the individual company Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG were prepared in accordance
with the accounting principles of the German Commercial Code (HGB). Information relating to the individual company is provided with the addition "Hermle AG" or
"Individual company". The non-financial declaration in accordance with Sections 289b and 315b of the German Commercial Code (HGB) is available on the Hermle
website at www.hermle.de (menu item: Investor Relations / Mandatory Publications / Non-Financial Declaration). It contains all the essential information about our
sustainability activities.

Basis of the group

Business model and sales markets

Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG is one of the world's leading providers of high-quality milling machines and machining centers. Our 5-axis machining centers and
our high quality standards set standards in the industry. Hermle's customer base includes domestic and foreign companies from high-tech sectors such as tool and mold
construction, medical technology, optical industry, aviation, energy technology, the automotive industry and motor sports as well as their supplier industries. The most
important single market is Germany. In addition, we sell our products worldwide and specifically develop additional growth markets.

The Hermle range of products and services has a modular structure and is continuously developed further, geared towards the requirements of the various market
segments. With our two machine series, the high-quality entry-level machines of the Performance Line and the extremely dynamic, precise and powerful machining
centers of the High Performance Line, we cover the needs of metal-cutting machine tool construction very well. There are also innovative solutions for automation,
digitally networked production and additive manufacturing, which are becoming increasingly important.

organization structure

The Hermle Group consists of the parent company Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG and several domestic and foreign subsidiaries. Hermle AG takes on most of the
development and production activities, central service and logistics as well as commercial and administrative functions for the group of companies. The domestic
subsidiaries include Hermle Vertriebs GmbH (HPV), the development company Hermle Maschinenbau GmbH (HMG) with a focus on additive manufacturing and HLS
Hermle Systemtechnik GmbH, which specializes in customer-specific automation solutions. The companies based in Germany form the domestic companies segment.

The international sales segment includes our companies and operations outside Germany. You are mainly responsible for sales and service activities in different regions.
There are independent Hermle subsidiaries in Italy, the Netherlands, Russia, Switzerland and the USA. In 2019, the scope of consolidation was expanded to include a
newly founded company in Mexico. There are also branches in Denmark, Austria, Poland and the Czech Republic. We also maintain representative offices in important
sales areas, for example in China and Bulgaria, which are organizationally assigned to Hermle AG.

Strategy and corporate management

The strategy of Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG is geared towards profitable organic growth. The aim is to use a strong equity base and a highly motivated, long-
term, competent team of employees in Germany to produce top-quality machine tools and automation solutions, to offer excellent service worldwide and to generate
adequate income. We also strive for the increasing digitization of our offer and all processes in the company, as well as the broadest possible regional and sector-specific
positioning. In 2019 we successfully implemented our strategy.
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The Hermle Group is controlled centrally by Hermle AG. In addition to incoming orders and sales, we use earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT), which corresponds to
the operating result, as a key figure for this. The management of the company is incumbent on the executive board of Hermle AG, which consists of three members. The
remuneration of the Management Board consists of a fixed and a variable component, which depends on the development of the annual profit of the individual company.
Disclosure requirements in accordance with Sections 289a and 315a of the German Commercial Code (HGB) do not exist, since of the share capital of Maschinenfabrik
Berthold Hermle AG, which is divided into 4 million ordinary and 1 million non-voting preference shares, only the preference shares are traded on the stock exchange.

Corporate governance statement

The working methods of the management board and the supervisory board as well as relevant information on corporate governance practices are described in the corporate
governance declaration in accordance with Sections 289f and 315d of the German Commercial Code (HGB), which can be found on our website www.hermle.de (menu
item: Investor Relations / Mandatory Publications / Declaration on Corporate Governance) is permanently available. This also includes the legally required information on
the quota of women in accordance with Sections 76 and 111 of the AktG.

Economic report

Framework conditions: global economy weaker

The global economy lost momentum in 2019. According to estimates by the International Monetary Fund (IMF), the world economy grew by 2.9% and thus significantly
weaker than in the previous year with 3.6%. Industrial production only increased by 0.8% after 3.1% in 2018 and world trade by 1.0% (previous year: 3.7%). The ongoing
trade conflicts between the USA and China and the EU, the general increase in protectionism and geopolitical tensions in various regions had a negative impact. The
resulting uncertainty about the further development of transnational trading systems and international cooperation slowed down companies' propensity to invest. In
addition, there was the change in the automotive industry, according to the International Monetary Fund (IMF) but also the reluctance to invest in individual countries,
such as Germany. The expansionary policies of many central banks countered these negative influences.

Economic output lost momentum in all regions. The developing and emerging countries expanded by a total of 3.7% after 4.5% in the previous year. In China, gross
domestic product (GDP) is expected to increase by 6.1% and in India by 4.8%. Among the industrialized nations, which achieved a total increase of 1.7% (previous year
2.2%), the USA grew the most at 2.3%. In the euro zone, the increase was only 1.2%, with Italy developing particularly poorly at + 0.2%, while Spain with + 2.0%
developed above average. According to the Federal Statistical Office, the German economy, which has been particularly hard hit by structural change in the automotive
industry and slacking world trade, grew by 0.6%. It grew for the tenth time in a row, but less than in previous years. The expansion was mainly supported by consumption
and construction. Equipment investment increased by only 0.4%.

German mechanical engineering produces less

The uncertainty of investors around the world and the transformation of the automotive industry affected mechanical engineering, whose sales in 2019 stagnated
worldwide according to VDMA estimates (Association of German Mechanical and Plant Engineering). Of the five most important production countries - China, Germany,
Italy, Japan and the USA - only China reported growth. According to preliminary information from the Federal Statistical Office, the output of the industry in Germany
was 3.2% below the previous year. According to the VDMA, incoming orders fell by 9% both at home and abroad.

According to initial calculations by the VDW (Association of German Machine Tool Builders), production in machine tool construction fell by 3% globally and by 1% in
Germany. The order intake of the German machine tool builders fell by 22%, whereby the domestic and foreign order volume were equally affected. In the cutting machine
tools area, which is relevant for Hermle, the new orders fell even more significantly by 26%.

From a technological point of view, in machine tool construction, which continues to orient itself towards the Hermle standard in the area of   5-axis machining, the topic of
Industry 4.0 and thus the automation and digitization of production processes is gaining in importance. In addition, we continue to observe a high demand for extremely
powerful, high-precision machines as well as high-quality, standardized and therefore inexpensive entry-level models. In special applications, additive or generative
manufacturing processes (so-called 3-D printing) also play a growing role. The industry is still characterized by intense competition, which against the background of the
cyclical,

Hermle business development at a glance

Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG maintained its market share as the technology leader in 5-axis machining centers in 2019. Based on the high order backlog from the
previous year, consolidated sales rose slightly and reached a new high despite the decline in demand over the course of the year. The result also improved somewhat. The
expected decline in new orders started later and more slowly than forecast, but intensified significantly over the course of the year and especially in the fourth quarter.
Accordingly, our capacity utilization was still high in the first nine months, while it fell noticeably towards the end of the year.

We attribute the development in sales and incoming orders, which is better than the industry average, to our extremely high-quality, modular machine and automation
range, which meets the requirements of the market very well. Thanks to numerous hardware and software components, we can already offer our mostly medium-sized
customers easy-to-use automation tools and a fully automatable product range from a single source.

Hermle incoming orders drop by 13%

The order intake of the Hermle Group decreased by 12.9% to EUR 414.4 million in 2019. The reason for this was the domestic order volume, which fell by 29.1% to EUR
154.5 million. This decline not only reflects the significantly weaker demand in Germany, but also represents a certain level of normalization, as we had posted high
double-digit growth here in the previous year. We received new orders from abroad to the value of EUR 259.9 million, which corresponds to a slight increase of 0.7%. The
order backlog as of December 31, 2019 was EUR 99.3 million, 32.9% below the comparable level at the end of the previous year.

Graphic: Incoming orders Hermle Group

in million euros 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
inland 155.8 156.8 171.7 217.9 154.5
foreign countries 204.9 207.7 261.5 258.0 259.9
total 360.7 364.5 433.2 475.9 414.4

In the individual company Hermle AG, incoming orders decreased by 14.9% to EUR 374.1 million. In Germany there was a clear minus of 29.0% to 155.6 million euros
and abroad there was a moderate decrease of 0.9% to 218.5 million euros. An order backlog of EUR 87.0 million was reported at the end of 2019, 36.8% less than a year
earlier.

Sales increase again by a good 2%
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Based on the good order backlog from the previous year, Hermle was able to increase consolidated sales in 2019 by another 2.2% to a new high of EUR 463.1 million. The
slight increase resulted primarily from the growing proportion of automated and therefore particularly high-quality machining centers, which lead to further increases in
productivity for our customers, as well as the large C 650 machining center from the Performance Line. Domestic sales increased by 5.8% to EUR 197.6 million. Abroad,
the business volume of EUR 265.5 million was almost at the 2018 level of EUR 266.1 million. This results in an export quota of 57.3% compared to 58.8% in the previous
year.

Graphic: Sales in the Hermle Group

In million euros 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
inland 147.9 160.3 168.2 186.8 197.6
foreign countries 208.7 233.7 233.8 266.1 265.5
total 356.6 394.0 402.0 452.9 463.1

The turnover of the individual company Hermle AG increased by 1.7% to 424.9 million euros. Of this, 198.7 million euros (previous year: 187.8 million euros) came from
Germany and 226.2 million euros (previous year: 229.8 million euros) from abroad. The export quota decreased from 55.0% to 53.2%.

Development in the segments

The business volume in the domestic companies segment grew by 6.7% in 2019 to EUR 290.4 million. Like Hermle AG, the sales company HPV and HLS, which
specializes in individual automation solutions, also achieved increases. HMG, which is responsible for the development of our additive manufacturing process, booked
further sales with existing and new pilot customers.

In the international sales segment, we reported a business volume of EUR 172.7 million in the reporting period compared to EUR 180.7 million in the previous year. Our
subsidiary in the USA achieved a significant increase and the Swiss sales company grew slightly. Business in Russia, which we handle via Hermle WWE, which is also
based in Switzerland, our Russian subsidiary and, in some cases, directly via Hermle AG, was stable overall. There were noticeable declines in Italy and the Netherlands,
where volumes normalized after a previous year that was positively influenced by special effects. The foreign Hermle branches developed overall at the previous year's
level.

Operating profit of EUR 114.2 million is slightly above the previous year

As a result of the increase in sales and the fact that capacity utilization was still good until the third quarter, the operating result of the Hermle Group improved roughly in
line with the business volume in 2019. The total output increased by 2.1% to EUR 464.7 million. This included slight increases in inventories and own work capitalized
relating to Hermle machines for our cutting production. The cost of materials ratio based on total output fell from 41.6% to 40.8%. Improved machine equipment levels
and a slight easing of the pressure on the procurement markets contributed to this. The share of personnel expenses, on the other hand, increased from 23.3% to 24.2%. In
addition to the expansion of the workforce (see section Employees) and the declining capacity utilization in the fourth quarter, this was primarily due to increases in
collective wage agreements. Due to the high investments in the past few years, depreciation was roughly stable at EUR 10.4 million (previous year: EUR 10.0 million).
The balance of other operating expenses and income has hardly changed at EUR -38.2 million (previous year EUR -37.9 million).

Overall, the operating result of the Hermle Group increased by 2.2% to 114.2 million euros in 2019. The domestic companies segment before consolidation effects
contributed EUR 103.5 million (previous year: EUR 102.4 million) and foreign sales EUR 10.7 million (previous year: EUR 9.6 million).

The financial result, which in the previous year had included an unsustainable one-off effect from the takeover of the remaining HLS shares in the amount of EUR 4.9
million, fell to a normal level of EUR -0.1 million compared to EUR 4.8 million. Euros in 2018. As a result, earnings before taxes decreased across the group from 116.6
million euros to 114.1 million euros, resulting in a gross sales margin of 24.6%. The comparable prior-year figure, adjusted for the special income from the HLS takeover,
was also 24.6%. After deducting taxes, the consolidated net income for the year was EUR 84.2 million (previous year: EUR 87.5 million). Earnings per ordinary share
were EUR 16.83 (previous year EUR 17.48; adjusted EUR 16.50) and EUR 16.88 per preference share (previous year EUR 17.48) 53 euros; adjusted 16.55 euros).

Graphic: Operating result and net income in the Hermle Group

in million euros 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Operating profit 80.4 99.8 99.0 111.7 114.2
Annual surplus 59.2 73.8 73.3 87.5 84.2
 incl. EUR 4.9 million special effect 

The operating result of the individual company Hermle AG, determined in accordance with the HGB regulations, was 100.5 million euros, slightly below the previous
year's figure of 101.5 million euros. The annual surplus rose slightly to EUR 83.9 million (previous year: EUR 82.3 million). This included dividends of EUR 9.9 million
from subsidiaries (previous year: EUR 8.5 million).

Financial management and financial position: Operating cash flow at EUR 94.6 million

The aim of the financial management of Hermle AG and the group is largely internal financing and securing our liquidity. We invest available funds exclusively with low
risk and predominantly on a short-term basis. As a rule, we want to finance both ongoing business and investment projects from cash flow. This allows us to react quickly
and flexibly to market changes relatively independently of the interests of third parties and the uncertain capital markets. Financing measures such as leasing are only used
in a few sensible exceptional cases.

The financial position of the Hermle Group was still solid in 2019. The cash flow before changes in working capital increased slightly by 1.7% compared to the previous
year to EUR 94.6 million. The funds tied up in working capital increased significantly, mainly because we received considerably fewer advance payments on orders due to
the decline in demand. In addition, inventories were built up somewhat due to the growing uncertainty in the procurement markets. This was offset by lower trade
receivables due to the business situation. In total, the inflow of funds from business activities decreased from EUR 93.3 million to EUR 71.7 million.

An outflow of 18.1 million euros was spent on investing activities in the reporting period (previous year inflow of 7.1 million euros). In addition to payments for property,
plant and equipment, the reallocation of cash and cash equivalents to time deposits in order to avoid negative interest rates had an impact in the reporting period.

The cash flow for financing activities was EUR -75.4 million after EUR -75.1 million in 2018. It included the unchanged high distribution of EUR 15.00 per common
share and EUR 15.05 per preferred share for the financial year compared to the previous year 2018.

In order to strengthen the capital base against the backdrop of the economic downturn and the coronavirus pandemic, the Management Board recommends that the
Supervisory Board grant the Annual General Meeting for 2019 an unchanged basic dividend of EUR 0.80 per common and EUR 0.85 per preferred share as well as a

*

*
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reduced bonus of 9 To propose 20 euros per share (previous year: 14.20 euros). The dividend proposal will be determined at the end of April and could also be lower
depending on the further development of the Corona crisis.

After taking into account exchange rate-related and other changes, there was a net decrease in liquid funds of EUR 21.1 million to EUR 107.5 million in 2019.

Graphic: Liquidity development 2019 in the Hermle Group

Financial resources as of 01.01. 128.6 million euros
Cash flow from business activities + 71.7 million euros
Cash outflow from investing activities -18.1 million euros
Cash outflow from financing activities -75.4 million euros
Other changes + 0.7 million euros
Financial resources as of December 31 107.5 million euros

Values   rounded

Capital investments of 13.3 million euros

Investments in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets in the group amounted to EUR 13.3 million in 2019, compared to EUR 11.9 million in the previous
year. At the company headquarters in Gosheim, investments were made in new Hermle machining centers for metal-cutting production as well as in systems for quality
management and sheet metal production in the reporting period. In addition, the first work was done to expand the Zimmer location (see chapter Production), the
expansion of our branch in the USA (see chapter Service and Sales) as well as factory and vehicles for new service employees.

Graphic: Cash flow and investments  in the Hermle Group

In million euros 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Cash flow 65.4 80.8 81.1 92.9 94.6
Investments 7.1 16.4 18.5 11.9 13.3
 Investments in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 

Hermle AG invested 9.5 million euros in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets in the reporting year (previous year: 10.2 million euros). The priorities largely
corresponded to the Group's domestic measures.

Assets position: equity ratio rises to 72%

The Hermle Group's total assets decreased by 1.7% to EUR 360.1 million as of December 31, 2019 compared to the previous year's reporting date. On the assets side, the
reduction resulted from current assets, which decreased by 4.5% to EUR 268.7 million. In addition to the cash and cash equivalents, which fell from EUR 128.6 million to
EUR 107.5 million, trade accounts receivable fell by 10.5% to EUR 64.2 million due to the slowdown in business at the end of the year. In contrast, inventories were
expanded by 9.3% to EUR 73.9 million due to the uncertain situation on the procurement markets and to ensure short-term delivery capabilities. In addition, the other
short-term receivables rose from EUR 6.8 million to EUR 13.1 million due to increased tax reclaims and other customer receivables. In the securities and other
investments item, the reallocation of liquid funds into short-term time deposits resulted in an increase of EUR 3.5 million to EUR 10.0 million.

The long-term assets increased by 7.5% to 91.4 million euros. This was primarily due to the increase in property, plant and equipment by EUR 4.4 million to EUR 73.5
million as a result of higher payments on account for orders for upcoming investment projects in 2020. In addition, the other financial assets increased to 3.0 million euros,
as the liquid funds were shifted to a small extent into time deposits with a term of one to two years.

Equity capital increased by 4.0% to EUR 260.4 million, so that the equity ratio improved from 68.3% to 72.3%. The long-term liabilities and provisions amounted to EUR
4.3 million (previous year: EUR 3.6 million). Due to the first-time application of IFRS 16, this included leasing liabilities of EUR 0.9 million. As in previous years,
Hermle had no bank debts. The short-term liabilities and provisions, which decreased by a total of 15.1% to EUR 95.4 million, were mainly reflected in the other short-
term liabilities, which fell sharply from EUR 54.0 million to EUR 39.7 million. This was due to the significantly lower advance payments received on orders due to the
decline in demand. The weaker business towards the end of the year also led to a reduction in current trade payables by 9.9% to EUR 8.6 million.

Graphic: Balance sheet structure of the Hermle Group

ASSETS

2019  
in million euros

2019  
in%

Fixed assets including other long-term assets and deferred taxes 91.4 25.4
Short-term assets 268.7 74.6
total 360.1 100.0
LIABILITIES
Equity 260.4 72.3
Long-term liabilities and provisions 4.3 1.2
Short-term liabilities and provisions 95.4 26.5
total 360.1 100.0

Values   rounded

Graphic equity ratio of the Hermle Group

in % 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Equity ratio 72.8 74.3 71.8 68.3 72.3

The total assets of Hermle AG decreased by 2.9% to EUR 276.7 million compared to the reporting date. As equity increased by 4.5% to EUR 206.9 million, the equity
ratio improved from 69.5% to 74.8%.

*

*
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Overall statement on the economic situation and comparison with the forecast

Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG maintained its market position in 2019 despite falling demand. Group sales and the operating result increased by a good 2% to EUR
463.1 million and EUR 114.2 million, respectively. Both values   were thus in line with the forecast, which assumed stable to slightly increasing consolidated sales and an
operating result roughly on a par with the previous year. Incoming orders, which fell by around 13% to EUR 414.4 million, developed somewhat better than forecast. In
view of the economic slowdown, we had assumed a decline of up to 20%. The expected slump in demand started more slowly and later in the year, but was even more
pronounced in the fourth quarter.

Hermle's financial and asset position was further strengthened in 2019: the operating cash flow rose slightly to EUR 94.6 million and the equity ratio to 72.3%. Overall, the
Management Board assesses the earnings, financial and asset position of Hermle AG and the Group in the 2019 financial year as very solid. In the first weeks of the
current year up to the preparation of the financial statements, the company's development was impaired by an increasingly weak economic environment and the worsening
of the Corona crisis.

Other performance indicators

Development with a focus on Industry 4.0

In 2019, the intensive research and development activities at Hermle continued at a high level. The aim is to offer our customers additional benefits and thereby further
consolidate our market position. The R&D focus is on the one hand on technological optimization of the machine series, such as increasing the cutting volume through
improved spindle technology. On the other hand, we deal with the development of innovative automation and digitization components to enable our customers to set up
Industry 4.0 production.

In 2019 we presented corresponding innovations at our in-house exhibition: for example the RS 05-2 robot system, which enables the compact and modular automation of
five different machine models from the performance and high-performance lines, or the Hermle Navigator, an innovative user interface for the simple and intuitive
operation of our machining centers. In 2020 we will present further solutions for automated and digitized manufacturing processes.

In the year under review, we also pushed ahead with adapting our MPA additive manufacturing technology (metal powder application process) to our C 42 machining
centers. After extensive tests of a not yet fully equipped prototype of this hybrid machine, which combines additive and cutting production, the first test series with the
complete C 42 MPA were prepared at the development site in Ottobrunn at the end of the year. The aim is to increase the capacities for this technology, which we are
already successfully offering our customers as a service, by expanding the MPA machine park.

Another focus was the development of data models and process flows with the aim of a digital twin. We want to record and analyze all relevant machine data from
development to use at the customer's premises and use it for service work or predictive maintenance in order to provide even better support for our customers.

Production: Relocation of sheet metal production prepared

In the year under review it was decided to relocate sheet metal production to new, expanded premises at our Zimmer location. In this way, we can further improve the
processes in this strategically important area and create more space for the optimization of processes at the company headquarters, including for spindle production. For
this purpose, we are building an ultra-modern new production hall with an office wing in rooms. The earthworks started at the end of the year. In Gosheim, we equipped
the new metal-cutting production facility with additional Hermle machines in 2019, including a large C 62 machining center.Another important topic was the further
development of our own production in the direction of Industry 4.0.

Procurement: High delivery security

With a share of a good 40% in group sales, purchased materials and components are of major importance for Hermle. In order to always keep all the important parts
available and to avoid bottlenecks in purchasing, we generally work with our suppliers for many years and based on trust. In 2019, the supply was guaranteed at all times.
Our sources of supply have been diversified occasionally. In order to ensure short-term delivery capability, we have also increased the stocks in some cases beyond what is
technically necessary.

Service and sales strengthened worldwide

In order to ensure our service quality, which is recognized in the industry as a whole, we further digitized our processes in this area in the year under review. In addition,
our service activities were expanded in various regions due to the continued high demand from abroad. One focus was on the USA, where we started expanding our branch
in the second half of the year. At our location in Franklin / Wisconsin, in addition to the technology and training center, the spare parts storage capacity is also being
expanded to ensure that our customers are supplied quickly. Our new service location in Uljanovsk, Russia, went into operation in 2019.

In addition, a new sales and service company was founded in Queretaro / Mexico during the reporting period. With this, we want to further expand our position in the
promising growth markets of Central and South America.

To present our range of products on the market, we took part in around 45 national and international trade fairs in 2019. The focus was on our in-house exhibition and the
EMO in Hanover. The specialist audience was able to find out more about our machining centers and solutions for automation and digitization. We also offered our
customers numerous workshops at home and abroad to find out more about new technologies and innovations from Hermle.

1,319 employees in the Hermle Group

Hermle employed 1,319 people in the group on December 31, 2019, 68 more than a year earlier. We hired new staff mainly in service and at our foreign subsidiaries, and
in the first quarter also in assembly. As of the second quarter, due to the impending economic downturn, a start was made not to fill vacant positions, if possible, but to
refill the flexitime accounts that some of the employees had not yet fully saved. In addition, the workforce increased, particularly in the production areas, by taking on
trainees who had successfully completed their degrees and filling the vacant training positions. At the end of 2019, 511 people were working in production (previous year
486), 85 in administration (previous year 80) and 723 in customer and supplier support and R&D (previous year 685).

On average over the year, Hermle had 1,296 employees across the group in 2019 (previous year: 1,225). Of these, 1,145 people (previous year 1,085) were in the domestic
companies and 151 (previous year 140) in international sales.

At the end of 2019, a total of 1,054 employees were active at Hermle AG after 1,000 on the previous year's reporting date. The number of trainees included increased from
89 to 100 young people. We consider the training of young talent to be extremely important, even in times of economic downturn, in order to be able to compensate for the
shortage of skilled workers accelerated by demographic change. Further information on our training activities can be found in the Social Issues chapter of the non-financial
statement.

The concept of the breathing company has proven itself
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The further slight increase in sales and earnings in 2019 was only possible thanks to the great commitment and competence of our workforce. Despite the significant slump
in demand and production cutbacks in the fourth quarter, a total output of EUR 352.3 thousand was achieved per employee after EUR 363.8 thousand in the previous year.
In order to honor their important contribution to the good development of the company, all employees should again receive a success bonus in the form of a fixed one-off
payment after the dividend has been paid out. Since the bonus is linked to the payment to the shareholders, it will probably be lower than in the previous year.

The flexitime accounts of our employees were for the most part still well filled after the busy past years at the end of the reporting period, although we had already taken
some production-free days from the fourth quarter. In the current phase of low demand, our concept of the breathing company, which has been tried and tested several
times, is proving its worth again, through which we can adapt our capacities very flexibly to economic fluctuations to a certain extent with unchanged workforce.

Graphic: Total output and number of employees in the Hermle Group

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Employees (as of December 31) 977 1,018 1,086 1,251 1,319
Total output in million euros 362.4 394.2 407.7 455.1 464.7
 without HLS employees 

Diversity in the workforce

Diversity and tolerance with regard to gender, nationality and age as well as towards people with disabilities have a high priority at Hermle and are supported accordingly.
The aim is to be able to fall back on the broadest and most varied of experience and to counter the shortage of skilled workers in Germany. In order to increase the
diversity in our workforce, we are primarily striving to increase the proportion of women in the commercial and technical area. In 2019, this share at Hermle AG was
around 7%, similar to the previous year. Well over 80% of all positions and around 90% of the positions on the first two management levels have a technical focus. They
require training in commercial professions or so-called MINT subjects (mathematics, IT, natural sciences and technology) - fields in which women are still severely
underrepresented. That is why we strive for new hires in the technical area to consider women at least proportionally relative to the total number of applicants. In the year
under review, we were able to take on a young trainer from our own ranks for the assembly learning location. That is why we try to ensure that women are taken into
account at least proportionally relative to the total number of applicants when hiring in the technical area. In the year under review we were able to take on a young trainer
from our own ranks for the assembly learning location. That is why we try to ensure that women are taken into account at least proportionally relative to the total number
of applicants when hiring in the technical area. In the year under review we were able to take on a young trainer from our own ranks for the assembly learning location.

We specifically address young women through events in schools and so-called "Girls' Days". Information on the proportion of women in management positions at Hermle
can be found in the corporate governance declaration in accordance with Sections 289f and 315d of the German Commercial Code.

Our increasing international activities create more and more tasks for employees of other nationalities. To expand our position in important foreign sales markets and to
intensify customer contact, we are specifically hiring native speakers from the regions concerned.

Hermle also offers attractive jobs to people with disabilities. The proportion of severely disabled employees at Hermle AG was around 3% in 2019, which is similar to the
previous year.

We want to bind our employees to the company in the long term in order to benefit from the extensive experience of older employees in particular. If you are interested, we
also offer partial retirement models. In the past financial year, the average length of service at Hermle AG was twelve years, as in the previous year. Over the past ten
years, 23 people have celebrated their 40th anniversary with the company, including a woman for the first time in 2019. The average age of the workforce remained
unchanged at around 37 in the reporting period.

Supplementary report

In the first few weeks of 2020, the noticeable decline in domestic demand since the fourth quarter of 2019 continued as expected, while a more moderate decline was
observed abroad. In response to this, as part of our “breathing company” concept, we reduced the weekly working hours and took paid non-production days, which went
hand in hand with the further reduction in flexitime accounts. In addition, the economic environment has been increasingly affected by the coronavirus pandemic since the
beginning of the year. Due to the uncertainty in the environment, especially in the movement of goods, Hermle shut down production from March 23rd until Easter.

Beyond this, there were no events between the end of the 2019 financial year and the signing of this report with a material impact on the earnings, financial and asset
position of Hermle AG and the Group.

Risk and opportunity report

Risk and opportunity management

As a globally active, medium-sized company, Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG sees itself faced with diverse opportunities and risks in its activities. Often times,
opportunities can only be used if certain risks are accepted. The management of opportunities and risks is therefore a fundamental part of our corporate governance and of
essential importance for our long-term positive development. In principle, risks should only be taken if possible if the related business can be expected to make a
reasonable contribution to the company's value.

The group-wide planning and controlling system forms the basis of our risk and opportunity management. It provides us with early information about important external or
internal changes that could give rise to opportunities or risks for Hermle. The relevant findings are discussed regularly and across departments within the company. As part
of this open discussion, we develop suitable strategies for dealing with the respective opportunities and risks.

Internal control system

In addition to our risk and opportunity management, we have an internal control system (ICS). Essential core elements of the ICS are a general separation of central
functions and a basic four-eye principle in the areas and business processes that are important for the overall risk situation of the company, which are additionally protected
by access restrictions in the IT systems. In addition, there is the monthly analysis of incoming orders, sales as well as important expense items and the observation of the
development of individual cost types in order to determine deviations promptly. In addition, product and order costing, service, warehousing and production include
suitable control mechanisms, to disclose conspicuous changes at an early stage. In 2019, the ICS was expanded in the areas of personnel and sales.

Presentation of the main risks

The most important risks for Hermle are described below in the order of their importance:

Market and economic risks - The demand cycles typical for our industry can worsen due to a deterioration in the general economic conditions and burden Hermle both
directly and indirectly. The risk from the uncertain macroeconomic environment, which was already great in previous years, increased in 2019 and, in our view, should

* * *

*
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continue to increase in 2020. The resulting reluctance to invest in many industrial sectors is being intensified by the structural change in the automotive industry. In
addition, the risks to the global economy from the coronavirus pandemic cannot currently be assessed. In addition, the situation is burdened by the increasing density of
regulations and bureaucratisation in Germany, which are not conducive to positive economic development. The current, long-lasting phase of low interest rates could also
have a negative impact on the stability of the banking sector and thus on the economy as a whole. Hermle can compensate for economic fluctuations in the normal scope
through flexible structures and processes within the concept of the breathing company. Our high liquidity and equity ratio as well as the resulting extensive independence
also contribute to Hermle's ability to withstand large-scale fluctuations in demand. which are not conducive to positive economic development. The current, long-lasting
phase of low interest rates could also have a negative impact on the stability of the banking sector and thus on the economy as a whole. Hermle can compensate for
economic fluctuations in the normal scope through flexible structures and processes within the concept of the breathing company. Our high liquidity and equity ratio as
well as the resulting extensive independence also contribute to Hermle's ability to withstand large-scale fluctuations in demand. which are not conducive to positive
economic development. The current, long-lasting phase of low interest rates could also have a negative impact on the stability of the banking sector and thus on the
economy as a whole. Hermle can compensate for economic fluctuations in the normal scope through flexible structures and processes within the concept of the breathing
company. Our high liquidity and equity ratio as well as the resulting extensive independence also contribute to Hermle's ability to withstand large-scale fluctuations in
demand. Long-term low interest rates could also have a negative impact on the stability of the banking sector and thus on the economy as a whole. Hermle can compensate
for economic fluctuations in the normal scope through flexible structures and processes within the concept of the breathing company. Our high liquidity and equity ratio as
well as the resulting extensive independence also contribute to Hermle's ability to withstand large-scale fluctuations in demand. Long-term low interest rates could also
have a negative impact on the stability of the banking sector and thus on the economy as a whole. Hermle can compensate for economic fluctuations in the normal scope
through flexible structures and processes within the concept of the breathing company. Our high liquidity and equity ratio as well as the resulting extensive independence
also contribute to Hermle's ability to withstand large-scale fluctuations in demand. Hermle can compensate for economic fluctuations in the normal scope through flexible
structures and processes within the concept of the breathing company. Our high liquidity and equity ratio as well as the resulting extensive independence also contribute to
Hermle's ability to withstand large-scale fluctuations in demand. Hermle can compensate for economic fluctuations in the normal scope through flexible structures and
processes within the concept of the breathing company. Our high liquidity and equity ratio as well as the resulting extensive independence also contribute to Hermle's
ability to withstand large-scale fluctuations in demand.

Competitive risks - The subdued economic development worldwide and the reluctance to invest, particularly in the automotive industry, are likely to increase the already
intense price and competitive pressure in our industry. To counter this and to strengthen customer loyalty, Hermle relies on particularly high-quality machines, individual
system solutions and very competent and reliable service. Our well-structured product range as well as the modular structure of the machines, automation and digitization
components enable us to offer our customers tailor-made solutions and at the same time to keep the cost structures solid.

Hermle counteracts concentration tendencies on the customer side and corresponding dependencies with regional and sector-specific diversification as well as the
development of new customers and markets. In response to the risk of insolvency-related payment defaults, we conduct an intensive order review and comprehensive
receivables management.

Due to the increasing internationalization in our industry, the likelihood of imitators is also growing continuously. Hermle therefore concentrates its R&D activities at the
Gosheim location, strictly regulates access and produces with a high degree of in-house production. A certain protection also results from the fundamentally very high
complexity of our machines.

Innovation and product risks - We arm ourselves against innovation risks through regular exchanges with customers, system suppliers and other market participants. These
discussions provide us with valuable information in order to consistently align our offer to the requirements of the users. In addition, we secure our technological
leadership role through intensive R&D activities. We prevent product liability risks through extensive series of tests prior to market launch as well as appropriate contract
drafting, insurance and proactive service measures.

Production risks - We generally reduce the risk of production downtimes through careful, preventive and extensive maintenance and early investment measures. We also
keep the production facilities up to date with the latest technology. Efficient organizational structures enable a smooth process in production. Thanks to the great technical
competence of our employees, operating errors are very unlikely to occur. We also have redundant production facilities in some cases.

Quality risks - We ensure the high quality of the machines and services - an important competitive factor for Hermle - through systematic quality management,
comprehensive testing procedures and training for our employees. In order to maintain the very good level of services and the supply of spare parts, we are also
continuously expanding our service.

Procurement risks - In order to always have sufficient access to high-quality purchased materials and components and to avoid procurement bottlenecks, Hermle carefully
selects its suppliers and works with them in fair, mostly long-term partnerships. The risk of supply failures is reduced, as far as it makes sense, with a second source
strategy, rolling requirements planning and security warehouses. Due to the outbreak of the coronavirus pandemic, there has been an increased risk since the beginning of
2020 that our suppliers will not be able to access the necessary parts that they purchase from China. Hermle itself does not buy directly in China. We are also taking a
critical look at the possibly increasing financing risks at suppliers due to the economic downturn. We limit the growing energy supply risks resulting from the exit from
nuclear power and the energy turnaround in part with our own combined heat and power plant systems.

IT risks - with the most modern technologies and redundant systems in important areas, we prevent risks in the field of IT as much as possible. Hermle operates two
mirrored computer rooms in Gosheim as well as an additional room for data backup in different parts of the building and ensures the highest level of data protection
through consistent security mechanisms. In addition, we have been backing up our data on a partially redundant infrastructure at our Zimmer ob Rottweil location since the
turn of the year. These mechanisms are checked at regular intervals by external specialists. Due to the high priority that data security has at Hermle, we train our
employees intensively in this area. However, IT failures cannot be completely ruled out. In order to be able to access sufficient capacities in an emergency, we took out
cyber insurance in 2019, through which we can mobilize support from external specialists.

Personnel risks - As our employees mostly complete their training in the company and regularly gain further qualifications, they are highly competent in their subject
matter. Hermle strives to increase the already great motivation and reliability of the workforce through interesting tasks, long-term employment relationships and
independent activities. We are countering the increasing shortage of skilled workers in Germany due to the demographic development by positioning ourselves as an
attractive employer, committed above-average to training and promoting the proportion of women in the workforce, especially in technical areas. Overall, we classify
personnel risks as low.

Financial risks - Financial and liquidity risks are very low at Hermle, as we largely finance larger investment projects and ongoing business internally, balance sheet very
conservatively and have a high equity ratio. Currency risks are minimized through suitable hedging transactions, which - like the other financial risks - are described in
detail in the notes to the consolidated financial statements under point 29. Tax risks can arise from regular tax audits.

Overall risk situation - The currently discernible risks are manageable for Hermle from the point of view of the Management Board. They still do not pose a threat to the
company's continued existence, either individually or in combination.

Presentation of the opportunities

Significant opportunities for Hermle result from both the environment and the company's strengths. They are divided into these categories below:
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Opportunities from the environment

We continue to see great potential for expansion for Hermle in the trend towards networking and automation in production (Industry 4.0), which is being exacerbated by
the demographic shortage of skilled workers. Hermle has both the high-quality and extremely reliable machines required for this as well as a wide range of corresponding
automation and digitization modules that we are continuously expanding.

From a regional perspective, Hermle has good growth opportunities, especially abroad. That is why we are continuously expanding our position in important markets and
are constantly examining additional interesting sales regions. The increasing maturity of various foreign markets in which Hermle is already present also gives us the
opportunity to increasingly sell higher-quality machining centers there in the future.

In principle, there is a chance for Hermle of a business development that exceeds expectations if the macroeconomic and industry-specific framework conditions develop
better than forecast. Our concept of the breathing company as well as flexible capacity reserves and processes generally lead to high delivery and responsiveness in the
event of possible positive economic swings. In the course of an overall economic upswing, our customers' business would also revive and the sales opportunities for our
products would increase as a result, since our customers usually need particularly efficient and reliable production systems like those manufactured by Hermle in phases
with high demand.

Opportunities from the company's strengths

The internal success factors flexibility and quality already mentioned for the external opportunities are reinforced by the high level of competence and motivation of the
Hermle workforce. The commitment, experience and know-how of our employees also consolidate our technologically leading market position and help us to better cope
with fluctuations in demand and capacity utilization and to strengthen customer loyalty through convincing service.

Thanks to the good reputation we have built up in the past as a reliable, quality and service-oriented partner who relies on continuity, we generally have a strong starting
position to win additional customers in new market segments that have already been worked on. At the same time, the high reliability of our machining centers as well as
our very up-to-date and demand-oriented product portfolio with ongoing innovations increase the chance of new customers and further application possibilities of our
machines with existing customers. In addition, the range of machines that we have expanded to include high-quality, standardized and therefore inexpensive 3 and 5-axis
models in recent years improves our prospects.

Our solid liquidity and equity base gives us extensive financial independence and enables us to react quickly to economic fluctuations and to survive economic lean
periods for longer.

Forecast report

Global economic environment severely affected

The outlook for the global economy in 2020 has deteriorated considerably due to the Corona crisis, which is overshadowing all other influences. Economic forecasts are
also associated with a high level of uncertainty. In the first half of March, the Kiel Institute for the World Economy (IfW) published a new outlook that also includes the
possible effects of the Covid-19 virus. The IfW assumes that the crisis will abate in the middle of the year and then a countermovement will emerge. Accordingly, global
gross domestic product could grow by 2% in the current year. For the East Asian emerging countries, a reduced dynamic of 3.7% is forecast. In China, economic growth is
likely to slow significantly, with 3, 8% remain disproportionately high in an international comparison. According to the IfW, the industrialized countries are expected to
expand at a significantly reduced rate of 0.6% in 2020. An increase of 1.5% and thus once again an above-average trend is forecast for the USA. In the euro zone, on the
other hand, economic output is likely to decline by 1%: while some northern and eastern European countries could develop above average in this regard, a minus is
expected for Italy, Spain and France. According to the IfW, the German economy will also contract slightly by 0.1%. An increase of 1.5% and thus once again an above-
average trend is forecast for the USA. In the euro zone, on the other hand, economic output is likely to decline by 1%: while some northern and eastern European countries
could develop above average in this regard, a minus is expected for Italy, Spain and France. According to the IfW, the German economy will also contract slightly by
0.1%. An increase of 1.5% and thus once again an above-average trend is forecast for the USA. In the euro zone, on the other hand, economic output is likely to decline by
1%: while some northern and eastern European countries could develop above average in this regard, a minus is expected for Italy, Spain and France. According to the
IfW, the German economy will also contract slightly by 0.1%. Spain and France expected a minus. According to the IfW, the German economy will also contract slightly
by 0.1%. Spain and France expected a minus. According to the IfW, the German economy will also contract slightly by 0.1%.

Industry environment: German mechanical engineering in reverse

The mechanical engineering association VDMA expects that the spread of the corona virus will noticeably set the industry back. Before the crisis, it was expected that
global sales of machines and systems in 2020 would be roughly at the previous year's level and that, based on a reduced order backlog, the industry in Germany would
convert around 2% less than in 2019. In the meantime, the VDMA is forecasting as far as the development today can calculate a real domestic production decrease of 5%
for 2020.

According to the VDW trade association, the situation in German machine tool construction is similar, although the fluctuations are significantly greater. After the decline
in orders in 2019, a production decline of 18% is predicted for 2020 even without the burdens from the corona pandemic.

Hermle expects sales and earnings to decline in 2020

Against the background of the difficult market environment, Hermle also expects business to decline in 2020. In addition to the general reluctance to demand, especially in
Germany, which has been noticeable since the end of 2019, the worsening of the corona crisis at the beginning of March will lead to significant additional burdens and the
associated reduction in incoming orders will last even longer. From our point of view, it is currently not foreseeable when a trend reversal could begin.

We currently consider a further reduction in new orders in the lower to mid double-digit percentage range possible within the Group. The main risk factors we are
observing are the extremely uncertain economic conditions around the world and the correspondingly weak propensity to invest in industry, which are being significantly
increased by the coronavirus pandemic. The development of the German automotive industry, burdened by structural changes and increasing regulation, is also having an
unfavorable effect. Hermle is hardly directly affected by this, but indirectly noticeably affected via various customer groups such as tool and mold making.

From today's perspective, consolidated sales will decrease by up to a third in 2020 and the operating result will decrease disproportionately to sales. Not only the reduced
capacity utilization, but also the expected intensification of competition should be felt here. Since the duration and extent of the corona pandemic as well as the political
measures to contain the crisis and their success are difficult to predict, reliable forecasts are currently not possible and a sharper correction is conceivable.

In principle, we are very well prepared for the slowdown in economic dynamics and the corresponding decline in sales, as we can adjust production capacities very
flexibly to a certain extent with our already tried and tested concept of the breathing company with unchanged workforce. Due to the worsening Corona crisis, the positive
flexitime accounts for large parts of our workforce are likely to be reduced to zero from around the end of April and then short-time work will follow.

On the other hand, thanks to its flexibility, Hermle has the opportunity to react quickly to any reversal of the downward trend in the industry.
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Solid financial and asset position

Despite the expected loss of earnings, Hermle's financial and asset situation will remain solid in 2020. Our high equity ratio and extensive liquid funds form the basis for
this. With the reduced bonus proposal for 2019, we want to strengthen this basis even more. The financing of the upcoming investment projects as well as the operative
business should therefore still be possible from own funds and without taking on bank liabilities.

Increase in capital investments

Investments in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets by the Hermle Group will increase significantly in the current year. The focus is on buildings and
systems for the construction of the new sheet metal production at the Zimmer location, which should be completed in 2020. In addition, there are investments in the
expansion of our branch in the USA, which is expected to be completed in the second half of 2020, and in the further digitalization of our processes from development to
service.

Stable workforce

The number of Hermle employees is expected to remain largely stable in 2020. Due to the difficult economic environment, vacancies should not be filled if possible.

Strengthen position in foreign growth markets

Due to the weak domestic economy, expanding our activities abroad is becoming increasingly important. In addition to the expansion of our US location, the new branch
established in Mexico in 2019 will also play an important role this year, through which we want to establish ourselves more strongly in Central America. In the next step,
as planned, the establishment of a sales company in Thailand is on our agenda in order to better develop the Asia / Pacific region.

R&D: Innovations for automation and digitization

We will continue our intensive R&D activities in 2020 with undiminished intensity. The focus is still on continuous technological improvements to our machine series as
well as automation and digitization modules for networked production (Industry 4.0) at our customers. To this end, we will be presenting further innovations over the
course of the year, for example the new HS flex Heavy handling system for particularly heavy components and expanded functionality of our digitization components.

Hermle is also continuing to participate in the development of a universal interface for machine tool construction under the UMATI brand (universal machine tool
interfacej) initiated by the VDMA be created.

In the additive manufacturing sector, we are planning to put the first hybrid machining center C 42 MPA into operation in the second half of the year in order to expand our
range of additive manufacturing services for our customers.

Another focus of development is the further digitization of our own processes with the aim of networked Industry 4.0 production.

Overall statement on future development

The Executive Board of Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG sees 2020 as a challenging year with very high forecast uncertainties. We are currently assuming that the
cyclical decline in demand, which has been significantly increased by the Corona crisis, will continue, especially in Germany, and that incoming orders may accordingly
decrease across the group in the lower to mid double-digit percentage range. Consolidated sales should decrease by up to around a third and the operating result
disproportionately. Depending on the further development of the Corona crisis, larger declines cannot be ruled out. With our concept of the breathing company, we can on
the one hand compensate for such a loss to a certain extent, but on the other hand we can also react quickly to any trend reversal. In addition, our solid financial and asset
position enables us to survive a longer economic downturn. Regardless of our current difficult environment, Hermle will continue to have good opportunities in the future,
in particular due to the trend towards automation and digitization and in high-growth foreign markets. We will use these opportunities to ensure long-term positive
corporate development. In addition, our solid financial and asset position enables us to survive a longer economic downturn. Regardless of our current difficult
environment, Hermle will continue to have good opportunities in the future, in particular due to the trend towards automation and digitization and in high-growth foreign
markets. We will use these opportunities to ensure long-term positive corporate development. In addition, our solid financial and asset position enables us to survive a
longer economic downturn. Regardless of our current difficult environment, Hermle will continue to have good opportunities in the future, in particular due to the trend
towards automation and digitization and in high-growth foreign markets. We will use these opportunities to ensure long-term positive corporate development. especially
due to the trend towards automation and digitization as well as in high-growth foreign markets. We will use these opportunities to ensure long-term positive corporate
development. especially due to the trend towards automation and digitization as well as in high-growth foreign markets. We will use these opportunities to ensure long-
term positive corporate development.

 

Gosheim, April 2020

Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG

The board of directors

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET IN ACCORDANCE WITH IFRS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2019

OF MASCHINENFABRIK BERTHOLD HERMLE AG, GOSHEIM

assets

KEUR
 

Previous year KEUR
A. LONG-TERM ASSETS
I. Intangible Assets
1. Goodwill 6.096 6.096
2. Capitalized development effort 83 319
3. Other intangible assets 5,486 5,912

11,665 12,327
II. Tangible assets
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KEUR
 

Previous year KEUR
1. Land, land rights and buildings including buildings on
third-party land

41,363 42,069

2. Technical systems and machines 14,102 15,919
3. Other equipment, factory and office equipment 12,885 10,659
4. Advance payments made on property, plant and
equipment

5,147 482

73,497 69,129
III. Other financial assets 3,005 5
Capital assets (7) 88.167 81,461
IV. Other long-term assets (8th) 7th 29
V. Deferred tax assets (24) 3.231 3,571

91,405 85,061
B. CURRENT ASSETS
I. Inventories (9)
1. Raw materials and supplies 36,838 31,330
2. Work in progress, work in progress 19.097 19,512
3. Finished products and merchandise 16,950 15,498
4. Advance payments made for inventories 1,036 1,265

73,921 67.605
II. Accounts receivable from deliveries and services (10) 64,224 71,719
IV. Other short-term receivables (10) 13,056 6,840
V. Securities and other investments (11) 10,000 6,505
VI. Means of payment (12) 107,540 128,596

268,741 281.265
360.146 366.326

LIABILITIES

KEUR
 

Previous year KEUR
A. EQUITY
I. Equity of the shareholders of Hermle AG (13) 260,389 250,302
II. Shares of other shareholders (14) 15th 11

260.404 250.313
B. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
I. Other long-term liabilities (16) 921 0
II. Long-term provisions (15) 1,768 1,815
III. Deferred tax liabilities (24) 1,641 1,818

4,330 3,633
C. CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
I. Short-term trade payables (16) 8,594 9,538
II. Other current liabilities (16) 39,629 53,953
III. Tax provisions (15) 1,639 4.117
IV. Short-term provisions (15) 45,550 44,772

95,412 112,380
360.146 366.326

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT ACCORDING TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS FOR THE
PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1, 2019 TO DECEMBER 31, 2019

OF MASCHINENFABRIK BERTHOLD HERMLE AG, GOSHEIM

attachment
2019  
kEUR

 
Previous year KEUR

1. Sales (17) 463.099 452.922
2. Change in inventory of finished and unfinished products 381 917
3. Other own work capitalized 1,259 1,290
Overall performance 464.739 455.129
4. Other operating income (18) 8,191 7,090
5. Cost of materials (19) 189,693 189,263
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attachment
2019  
kEUR

 
Previous year KEUR

6. Personnel expenses (20) 112,249 106,235
7. Depreciation of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment (21) 10,391 10,013
8. Other operating expenses (22) 46,400 44,978

358.733 350,489
9. Income from operations 114.197 111,730
10. Other financial result (23) -105 4,824
11. Financial result -105 4,824
12. Earnings before taxes 114.092 116,554
13. Taxes on income and earnings (24) 29,882 29,083
14. Net income 84.210 87,471
15. Profit shares of other shareholders -5 -3
16. Share of profits of the shareholders of Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG 84.205 87,468
Earnings per share in euros:
Per common share 16.83 17.48
Per preference share including dividend preference 16.88 17.53
 Details of the calculation in the appendix under (25) 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME BASED ON THE INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS FOR
THE 2019 FINANCIAL YEAR

OF MASCHINENFABRIK BERTHOLD HERMLE AG, GOSHEIM

2019  
kEUR

 
Previous year KEUR

I. Net income according to the profit and loss account 84.210 87,471
II. Other total income
Items that may subsequently be reclassified to the income statement
1. Currency Changes 798 376
2. Changes from derivative financial instruments 180 -565
3. Changes in financial instruments available for sale 0 0
4. Income taxes on other total income
- Taxes on currency changes (1.) 0 0
- Taxes on changes in derivative financial instruments (2.) -48 150
- Taxes on changes in financial instruments available for sale (3.) 0 0
Sum of income taxes on other total income -48 150
5. Other total income after taxes 930 -39
III. Total income 85.140 87,432
Minority interests in total income 6th 3
Share of Hermle AG shareholders in total income 85.134 87,429

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2018 IN ACCORDANCE WITH IFRS FOR THE PERIOD 01/01/2018
to 31/12/2019

OF MASCHINENFABRIK BERTHOLD HERMLE AG, GOSHEIM

Subscribed capital
Capital
reserve Retained earnings

Ordinary
shares  
T-Euro

Preference
shares  
T-Euro T-Euro

Statutory revenue
reserves  

T-Euro

Other revenue
reserves  

T-Euro

Balance sheet
profit  

T-Euro
As of 01/01/2018 12,000 3,000 3,286 1,749 96,029 120,572
Dividend for the previous year according to the AGM resolution -75,050
Allocation to the revenue reserves according to the AGM resolution
Annual surplus 2018 87,468
Allocation to revenue reserves in accordance with Section 16 (3) of
the Articles of Association

7,500 -7,500

Cash flow hedges
Uncalled dividends 1
Other changes 1 427
As of December 31, 2018 12,000 3,000 3,286 1,749 103,530 125,918
Dividend for the previous year according to the AGM resolution -75,050

*

*

*
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Subscribed capital
Capital
reserve Retained earnings

Ordinary
shares  
T-Euro

Preference
shares  
T-Euro T-Euro

Statutory revenue
reserves  

T-Euro

Other revenue
reserves  

T-Euro

Balance sheet
profit  

T-Euro

Allocation to the revenue reserves according to the AGM resolution
Annual net income 2019 84.205
Currency changes 0
Allocation to the revenue reserves of the subsidiaries 66 -66
Cash flow hedges
Uncalled dividends 1
Other changes 8th -6
As of December 31, 2019 12,000 3,000 3,286 1,815 103,538 135.002

Total retained
earnings in  

EUR thousand

Cumulative other
currency conversion  

T-Euro

Equity from derivative
financial instruments  

T-Euro

Equity of the shareholders
of Hermle AG  

T-Euro
As of 01/01/2018 218.350 525 333 237.494
Dividend for the previous year according to the AGM
resolution

-75,050 -75,050

Allocation to the revenue reserves according to the AGM
resolution

0 0

Annual surplus 2018 87,468 87,468
Allocation to revenue reserves in accordance with Section 16
(3) of the Articles of Association

0 0

Cash flow hedges 0 -415 -415
Uncalled dividends 1 1
Other changes 428 428
As of December 31, 2018 231.197 901 -82 250,302
Dividend for the previous year according to the AGM
resolution

-75,050 -75,050

Allocation to the revenue reserves according to the AGM
resolution

0 0

Annual net income 2019 84.205 84.205
Currency changes 0 797 797
Allocation to retained earnings 0 0
of the subsidiaries 0 0
Cash flow hedges 0 132 132
Uncalled dividends 1 1
Other changes 2 2
As of December 31, 2019 240.355 1,698 50 260,389

Shares of others in the
capital  
T-Euro

Shareholder in the cumulative group result
in  

EUR thousand
As of 01/01/2018 1 16
Dividend for the previous year according to the AGM resolution -9
Allocation to the revenue reserves according to the AGM resolution
Annual surplus 2018 3
Allocation to revenue reserves in accordance with Section 16 (3) of the Articles of
Association
Cash flow hedges
Uncalled dividends
Other changes
As of December 31, 2018 1 10
Dividend for the previous year according to the AGM resolution -2
Allocation to the revenue reserves according to the AGM resolution
Annual net income 2019 5
Currency changes 1
Allocation to retained earnings
of the subsidiaries
Cash flow hedges
Uncalled dividends
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Shares of others in the
capital  
T-Euro

Shareholder in the cumulative group result
in  

EUR thousand

Other changes
As of December 31, 2019 1 14th

Equity in  
EUR thousand

As of 01/01/2018 237,511
Dividend for the previous year according to the AGM resolution -75.059
Allocation to the revenue reserves according to the AGM resolution 0
Annual surplus 2018 87,471
Allocation to revenue reserves in accordance with Section 16 (3) of the Articles of Association
Cash flow hedges -415
Uncalled dividends 1
Other changes 428
As of December 31, 2018 250.313
Dividend for the previous year according to the AGM resolution -75.052
Allocation to the revenue reserves according to the AGM resolution 0
Annual net income 2019 84.210
Currency changes 798
Allocation to retained earnings 0
of the subsidiaries 0
Cash flow hedges 132
Uncalled dividends 1
Other changes 2
As of December 31, 2019 260.404

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE 2019 FINANCIAL YEAR IN ACCORDANCE WITH IFRS

OF MASCHINENFABRIK BERTHOLD HERMLE AG, GOSHEIM

2019  
T-Euro

Previous year  
T-Euro

Annual surplus 84.210 87,471
Depreciation on fixed assets 10,391 10,013
Write-downs on securities and other investments 0 131
Change in long-term provisions -47 234
Profit shares from joint ventures 0 0
Other non-cash transactions 0 -4,903
Cash flow before changes in working capital 94,554 92,946
Elimination of after-tax earnings from asset disposals -1,010 -528
Funds tied up / funds released from inventories -6,317 -5,521
Requests from deliveries and services 7,495 -9,177
Other short-term receivables -6,245 -1,405
Deferred tax assets and other long-term assets 362 -1,232
Short-term trade payables -944 -2,088
Short-term provisions -1,701 5,369
Other current liabilities -14,323 15,413
Deferred tax liabilities -176 -463
Cash flow from operating activities 71,695 93,314
Payments for investments in property, plant and equipment -12,617 -10,955
Payments received from disposals of property, plant and equipment 1,617 784
Payments for investments in intangible assets -639 -917
Proceeds from the disposal of intangible assets 0 0
Dividends received from joint ventures 0 0
Payments for the purchase of third-party securities and other investments -13,000 -1,500
Proceeds from the sale of third-party securities and other investments 6,505 22,449
Payments for investments in fully consolidated companies 0 -2,805
Cash outflow from investing activities -18,134 7,056
Borrowing / releasing funds from other long-term liabilities -345 01)
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2019  
T-Euro

Previous year  
T-Euro

Payment of dividends -75.051 -75.058
Cash outflow from financing activities -75,396 -75.058
Changes in value due to exchange rates 645 301
Changes from direct offsetting not affecting income 132 -415
Other changes 2 8th
Change in financial resources -21,056 25.206
Financial resources as of 01.01. 128,596 103,390
Financial resources as of December 31 107,540 128,596
 taking into account the effects of leasing accounting  
 see statement of changes in equity and schedule of assets 

See explanations in Appendix (26)

GROUP SEGMENT REPORTING FOR THE 2019 FISCAL YEAR IN ACCORDANCE WITH IFRS

OF MASCHINENFABRIK BERTHOLD HERMLE AG, GOSHEIM

Domestic companies Foreign sales Consolidation Effects
2019  

T-Euro
2018  

T-Euro
2019  

T-Euro
2018  

T-Euro
2019  

T-Euro
2018  

T-Euro
Third party sales 290.376 272.234 172.723 180,688 0 0
Operating profit 103,470 102.282 10,654 9,757 73 -310
Annual surplus 85,870 88,437 8,330 7,582 -9,990 -8,548
Long-term segment assets 82,981 78,715 8,424 6,346 0 0
Short-term segment assets 206.351 221,728 76,395 71,919 -14,005 -12,382
Segment assets (total assets) 289,332 300,443 84,819 78.266 -14,005 -12,382
Segment debts including provisions 75.011 86.193 39,957 38,152 -15,226 -8,331
Investments (including access to usage rights) 12,931 10,538 3,482 1,334 0 0
Depreciation 9,072 8,816 1,319 1,197 0 0
Employees annual average 1,145 1,086 151 139 0 0

Consolidated Financial Statements
2019  

T-Euro
2018  

T-Euro
Third party sales 463.099 452.922
Operating profit 114.197 111,730
Annual surplus 84.210 87,471
Long-term segment assets 91,405 85,061
Short-term segment assets 268,741 281.265
Segment assets (total assets) 360.146 366,327
Segment debts including provisions 99,742 116.013
Investments (including access to usage rights) 16,413 11,872
Depreciation 10,391 10,013
Employees annual average 1,296 1,225

For an explanation of the reimbursement of the semen, see Appendix (27)

DEVELOPMENT OF THE GROUP FIXED ASSETS 2019 AS PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fixed asset items Acquisition / production costs

01.01.2019
EUR

Additions
of  

TEUR

Disposals in
EUR

thousand

Transfer  
postings EUR

thousand

Currency  
adjustments in EUR

thousand
12/31/2019

kEUR
I. Intangible Assets
1. Goodwill 6.096 0 0 0 0 6.096
2. Capitalized development effort 2,958 0 302 0 0 2,656
3. Other intangible assets 12,157 639 34 0 2 12,764

21,211 639 336 0 2 21,516
II. Tangible assets
1. Land, land rights and buildings including buildings on third-
party land

69,990 252 0 0 105 70,347

2. Technical systems and machines 51,564 1,652 1.939 7th 49 51,333
3. Other equipment, factory and office equipment 30,886 5,753 1.965 445 127 35,246

2)

2)

2)

1)

2)

1)

1)
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Fixed asset items Acquisition / production costs

01.01.2019
EUR

Additions
of  

TEUR

Disposals in
EUR

thousand

Transfer  
postings EUR

thousand

Currency  
adjustments in EUR

thousand
12/31/2019

kEUR
4. Advance payments made on property, plant and equipment 482 5.117 0 -452 0 5,147

152.922 12,774 3,904 0 281 162,073
III. Financial assets
Other financial assets 5 3,000 0 0 0 3,005

5 3,000 0 0 0 3,005
174,138 16,413 4,240 0 283 186,594

Fixed asset items Accumulated depreciation

01.01.2019
EUR

Additions of  
TEUR

Disposals in  
EUR thousand

Currency  
adjustments in EUR

thousand
12/31/2019  

kEUR
I. Intangible Assets
1. Goodwill 0 0 0 0 0
2. Capitalized development effort 2,639 236 302 0 2,573
3. Other intangible assets 6,245 1,063 31 1 7,278

8,884 1,299 333 1 9,851
II. Tangible assets
1. Land, land rights and buildings including
buildings on third-party land

26,992 1,962 0 30th 28,984

2. Technical systems and machines 35,645 3,059 1,488 15th 37.231
3. Other equipment, factory and office equipment 19,986 4,071 1,781 85 22,361
4. Advance payments made on property, plant and
equipment

0 0 0 0 0

82,623 9.092 3,269 130 88,576
III. Financial assets
Other financial assets 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0
91.507 10,391 3,602 131 98,427

Fixed asset items Book values
01.01.2019  

EUR
12/31/2019  

kEUR
I. Intangible Assets
1. Goodwill 6.096 6.096
2. Capitalized development effort 319 83
3. Other intangible assets 5,912 5,486

12,327 11,665
II. Tangible assets
1. Land, land rights and buildings including buildings on third-party land 42,998 41,363
2. Technical systems and machines 15,919 14,102
3. Other equipment, factory and office equipment 10,900 12,885
4. Advance payments made on property, plant and equipment 482 5,147

70,299 73,497
III. Financial assets
Other financial assets 5 3,005

5 3,005
82,631 88.167

 For the effects of the first-time application of IFRS 16 as of 01/01/2019, see explanations in Appendix (2) 

DEVELOPMENT OF THE GROUP FIXED ASSETS 2018 AS PART OF THE NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

Fixed asset items Acquisition / production costs

1.1.2018
KEUR

Additions
of  

TEUR

Disposals in
EUR

thousand

Transfer  
postings EUR

thousand

Currency  
adjustments in EUR

thousand
12/31/2018

kEUR
I. Intangible Assets
1. Goodwill 0 6.096 0 0 0 6.096
2. Capitalized development effort 3,754 53 850 0 1 2,958
3. Other intangible assets 7,079 5,951 874 0 1 12,157

1)

1)

1)
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Fixed asset items Acquisition / production costs

1.1.2018
KEUR

Additions
of  

TEUR

Disposals in
EUR

thousand

Transfer  
postings EUR

thousand

Currency  
adjustments in EUR

thousand
12/31/2018

kEUR

10,833 12,100 1,724 0 2 21,211
II. Tangible assets
1. Land, land rights and buildings including buildings on third-
party land

68,290 653 0 7th 111 69,061

2. Technical systems and machines 47,432 5,395 1,572 296 13 51,564
3. Other equipment, factory and office equipment 30,074 4,536 4,065 29 71 30,645
4. Advance payments made on property, plant and equipment 357 473 15th -332 -1 482

146.153 11,057 5,652 0 194 151.752
III. Financial assets
1. Shares in companies valued at equity 1,073 0 1,073 0 0 0
2. Other financial assets 5,006 0 5,001 0 0 5

6,079 0 6,074 0 0 5
163.065 23,157 13,450 0 196 172,968

Fixed asset items Accumulated depreciation

1.1.2018
KEUR

Additions
of  

TEUR

Disposals in  
EUR

thousand
Rebookings

EUR

Currency  
adjustments in EUR

thousand
12/31/2018

kEUR
I. Intangible Assets
1. Goodwill 0 0 0 0 0 0
2. Capitalized development effort 3,208 281 850 0 0 2,639
3. Other intangible assets 5,871 1,242 869 0 1 6,245

9,079 1,523 1,719 0 1 8,884
II. Tangible assets
1. Land, land rights and buildings including buildings on third-party
land

24,960 1.991 0 0 41 26,992

2. Technical systems and machines 34,302 2,775 1,462 0 30th 35,645
3. Other equipment, factory and office equipment 20,154 3,724 3,939 0 47 19,986
4. Advance payments made on property, plant and equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0

79,416 8,490 5,401 0 118 82,623
III. Financial assets
1. Shares in companies valued at equity 0 0 0 0 0 0
2. Other financial assets 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0
88,495 10,013 7.120 0 119 91.507

Fixed asset items Book values
1.1.2018  

KEUR
12/31/2018  

kEUR
I. Intangible Assets
1. Goodwill 0 6.096
2. Capitalized development effort 546 319
3. Other intangible assets 1,208 5,912

1,754 12,327
II. Tangible assets
1. Land, land rights and buildings including buildings on third-party land 43,330 42,069
2. Technical systems and machines 13,130 15,919
3. Other equipment, factory and office equipment 9,920 10,659
4. Advance payments made on property, plant and equipment 357 482

66,737 69,129
III. Financial assets
1. Shares in companies valued at equity 1,073 0
2. Other financial assets 5,006 5

6,079 5
74,570 81,461

 The disposal relates to time deposits with a remaining term of less than one year as of December 31, 2018. They are therefore no longer shown under long-term assets, but under short-
term assets in the item "Securities and other investments". 

(1)

(1)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 2019 FINANCIAL YEAR

OF MASCHINENFABRIK BERTHOLD HERMLE AG, GOSHEIM

(1) General principles

Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG, which is based in Gosheim, Industriestrasse 8-12, Germany, and is entered in the commercial register at the Stuttgart District Court,
HRB 460397, is the ultimate parent company of the Hermle Group. Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG and its subsidiaries produce and sell high-precision milling
machines and machining centers.

The consolidated financial statements of Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG were prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),
as they are to be applied in the European Union (EU), and the commercial law provisions to be observed in accordance with Section 315e of the German Commercial
Code. All standards, interpretations and interpretations that were mandatory on the balance sheet date were taken into account.

The financial statements of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements are drawn up according to uniform accounting and valuation principles as of
December 31, 2019.

In order to improve the clarity of the presentation, some items of the balance sheet and the income statement have been combined. These are shown and explained
separately in the notes. The profit and loss account is prepared using the total cost method. The group currency is the euro. The information is given in thousands of euros,
unless otherwise stated.

The Management Board of Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG approved the consolidated financial statements on April 7, 2020 for submission to the Supervisory
Board. The supervisory board has the task of examining the consolidated financial statements and declaring whether it approves the consolidated financial statements.

(2) New and amended standards / interpretations

For the 2019 financial year, the IFRS were used as the basis, and their application is mandatory for financial years beginning on January 1, 2019.

The following standards and interpretations had to be observed for the first time in the current financial year:

IFRS 16: Leasing contracts
IFRS 9: Financial assets with negative early repayment penalties (change)
IFRIC 23: Uncertainty regarding income tax treatment
IAS 19: Plan change, reduction or compensation
IAS 28: Long-term shares in associated companies and joint ventures (changes)
IFRS 2015 - 2017: IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23 (amendments)

On IFRS 16:

IFRS 16 introduces a uniform accounting model, according to which almost all leases are to be recognized in the lessee's balance sheet. The standard replaces IAS 17
"Leases" and the supplementary guidelines IFRIC 4 "Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease", SIC-15 "Operating Leases - Incentives" and SIC-27
"Assessment of the Substance of Transactions in the Legal Form of leases ".

A lessee generally recognizes a lease liability for leases in the amount of the present value of the future lease payments and a right of use in the same amount, which
represents his right to use the underlying asset. There are exemptions for short-term leases (term is 12 months or less) and for leases related to low-value assets. The
lessor's accounting rules are comparable to the previous standard - that is, lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases and have to account for them
differently.

Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG applied IFRS 16 for the first time on January 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method; the usage rights were generally
recognized in the amount of the lease liability. Comparative information was not adjusted.

The simplification rule regarding the retention of the definition of a lease was used during the changeover. This means that Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG has
applied IFRS 16 to all contracts that were concluded before January 1, 2019 and which were identified as leases according to IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The leasing contracts
previously classified as operating leases are affected by the initial application. Short-term leasing agreements with a term of no more than 12 months (and without a
purchase option) as well as leasing agreements in which the asset underlying the leasing agreement is of low value were not accounted for in accordance with the option.
The related lease payments continue to be recognized as an expense in the consolidated income statement. Non-leasing and leasing components are generally accounted for
separately from one another.

The initial recognition of a lease liability is determined as the present value of the lease payments to be made plus directly attributable costs. Discounting is carried out
using the interest rate on which the leasing relationship is based or, if this cannot be easily determined, with the incremental borrowing rate expected in line with market
conditions. The average incremental borrowing rate applied as of January 1, 2019, against the background of the short term of the leases and the creditworthiness of our
company, was approx. 1.0%. In the subsequent measurement, the book value of the lease liability is compounded and reduced by the lease payments made without
affecting income. The rights of use shown in fixed assets are capitalized at the initial recognition in the amount of the lease liability. Payments made before the start of the
lease and rental incentives granted by the lessor are taken into account in the book value of the right of use. The right of use is generally amortized over the term of the
lease, taking into account any necessary impairment losses in accordance with IAS 36.

The application of IFRS 16 leads to a changed structure of the expenses, since the group now recognizes depreciation for rights of use as well as interest expenses from the
lease liabilities. Previously, operating lease expenses had a full impact on EBIT. Interest expenses from the compounding of the lease liability according to IFRS 16 are
now shown in the financial result. In the cash flow statement, interest and redemption payments for leases are shown in the cash flow from financing activities. Cash flows
for operating leases were previously shown in the cash flow from operating activities.

As part of the changeover to IFRS 16, leasing liabilities in the amount of EUR 1,140 thousand and rights of use with an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted to
include deferred lease payments for these leases prior to January 1, 2019, in the amount of EUR thousand were added on January 1, 2019 -Euro 1,169 recorded. The
difference between the expected future minimum lease payments for operating leases as of December 31, 2018 in the amount of EUR 1,186 thousand and the leasing
liabilities recorded in the opening balance sheet in the amount of EUR 1,140 thousand results mainly from exercising the option to use the short-term approach and low-
value leases as well as the effect of discounting.

The values   in the balance sheet in connection with the first-time application as of January 1, 2019 break down as follows:
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Usage rights as of
01/01/2019  

T-Euro

Leasing liabilities as of
01/01/2019  

T-Euro

Usage rights as of
01/01/2019  

T-Euro

Leasing liabilities as of
01/01/2019  

T-Euro
Land, land rights and buildings, including buildings on third-party land 928 928
Other equipment, factory and office equipment 241 212

1,169 1,140
The application of IFRS 16 reduced other operating expenses in 2019, while depreciation increased. There was an increase in EBITDA and a minimal improvement in
EBIT. The changed reporting in the cash flow statement led to an increase in free cash flow for 2019. The cash flow from financing activities changed accordingly.

The other accounting, valuation and consolidation methods, with the exception of the new mandatory regulations and the options, were retained unchanged compared to
the 2018 financial year.

The other new standards did not have any material effects on the consolidated financial statements.

The following new standards and interpretations, which have already been adopted by the European Union, have not yet come into force and have not yet been taken into
account in the financial statements:

IAS 1 and IAS 8: Establishing a definition of materiality
Framework concept: Changes to the references in various standards to the framework concept
IFRS 9, IAS 39, IAS7: IBOR reform

In addition, the following new or amended standards and interpretations exist that have been issued by the IASB but have not yet been recognized by the European Union:

IFRS 3: Change the definition of business operations
IFRS 17: Insurance contracts

It is not expected that these standards will have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

(3) Scope of consolidation

All subsidiaries of Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG are included in the consolidated financial statements. All subsidiaries are companies that are directly controlled
by Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG and are therefore fully consolidated.

The scope of consolidation is shown in the following table:

society Type of consolidation Participation rate
Domestic segment
Hermle Vertriebs GmbH, Gosheim Full 100.0%
Hermle Systemtechnik GmbH, Gosheim Full 100.0%
Hermle Maschinenbau GmbH, Gosheim Full 100.0%
Foreign sales segment
Hermle (Schweiz) AG, Neuhausen, Switzerland Full 100.0%
Hermle WWE AG, Neuhausen, Switzerland Full 99.8%
Hermle Vostok OOO, Moscow, Russia Full 99.8%
Hermle Nederland BV, Blerick, Netherlands Full 100.0%
Hermle Italia SRL, Rodano, Italy Full 100.0%
Hermle USA INC. (formerly Machine Co. LLC), Franklin Wisconsin, USA Full 100.0%
Hermle Properties INC., Franklin Wisconsin, USA Full 100.0%
Hermle Uljanovsk OOO, Uljanovsk, Russia Full 100.0%
Hermle Mexico, S. DE RL DE CV, Queretaro, Mexico Full 100.0%

Hermle Mexico, which was founded in July 2019, was included in the consolidated financial statements for the first time in the financial year.

As of January 1, 2019, Hermle AG's previous Hermle USA facility was transferred to Hermle Properties Inc. The company building located in Franklin, Wisconsin, will be
held as the business purpose, which will remain unchanged at Hermle USA INC. is rented. Hermle Properties INC. was assigned to the international segment from
01/01/2019, while the previous operating facility as part of Hermle AG was assigned to the domestic segment.

The scope of consolidation otherwise remained unchanged compared to the previous year.

(4) Consolidation principles

Capital consolidation is carried out in accordance with IFRS 3 ("Business Combinations") using the purchase method. According to this, the acquisition costs of the shares
acquired are offset against the fair value of the acquired assets and liabilities of the subsidiary at the time of acquisition. Any positive difference that arises is capitalized as
derivative goodwill; any negative difference that arises is immediately released to income. Any goodwill that arises is subjected to an impairment test at least once a year.

Intercompany results between the fully consolidated companies are - if material - eliminated. Expenses and income as well as receivables and liabilities between group
companies are offset.

For the shares of non-group shareholders in group companies, an adjustment item for shares of other shareholders has been created in the amount of their share in equity.
In addition to the shares of third parties in the capital and reserves, this amount also includes the proportionate balance sheet profit.

(5) Currency conversion

The annual financial statements of the consolidated companies prepared in a foreign currency are converted on the basis of the functional currency concept using the
modified closing rate method. Since all companies included in the consolidated financial statements operate their business independently from a financial, economic and
organizational point of view, the functional currency is basically identical to the company's respective national currency. Therefore, in the consolidated financial
statements, assets and liabilities are translated at the rate on the reporting date, equity items at historical rates, and expenses and income at the annual average rate.
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In the financial statements of the individual group companies, monetary items in foreign currency are generally converted at the rate on the reporting date. The resulting
currency gains or losses are recognized immediately in profit or loss. Currency conversion differences from the conversion of balance sheet items of foreign permanent
establishments are generally recognized in profit or loss.

The following exchange rates were used to convert the main foreign currency financial statements:

Closing rates Average rates
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018 2019 2018

€ / US $ 1.1234 1.1450 1.1195 1.1793
€ / SFR 1.0854 1.1269 1.1111 1.1877

(6) Accounting and valuation principles

ACTIVE ITEMS

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

In accordance with IAS 38, intangible assets are valued at acquisition cost less scheduled depreciation. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
corresponds to the fair value at the time of the business combination.

Acquired goodwill is capitalized and subjected to an annual impairment test. If a need for value adjustment is determined, a write-down is made.

Internally generated intangible assets from which the Group will most likely receive future benefits and whose costs can be reliably determined are capitalized at
manufacturing costs. The manufacturing costs include all costs directly attributable to the manufacturing process and appropriate parts of the associated overheads.
Financing costs are not capitalized. Research and development expenses that cannot be capitalized are treated as current expenses when they arise. Development costs for
new or significantly improved products are capitalized as long as the technical feasibility as well as the marketability and intent are ensured. Evidence for the criteria
mentioned is provided with the technical testing of the new products in-house and the successful presentation to test customers. Capitalized developments are amortized on
a straight-line basis over an expected product life cycle of three to four years, beginning with the public presentation, and are checked annually by means of an impairment
test.

Property, plant and equipment is valued on the basis of acquisition and production costs, reduced by scheduled depreciation in accordance with the normal useful life.
Scheduled depreciation is carried out in accordance with the expected consumption of future benefits. The internal work was accounted for with the directly attributable
costs plus a proportion of overheads. Repair and maintenance costs as well as finance costs are recognized as current expenses.

Scheduled depreciation is based on the following uniform Group useful lives:

Industrial property rights and similar rights 3 to 5 years
Development costs 3 to 4 years
Technical know-how ten years
building 12 to 50 years
Technical systems and operating devices 3 to 14 years
Other fixtures and fittings 3 to 14 years

There are no assets with an indefinite useful life - apart from goodwill.

Impairment test

The intrinsic value of the fixed assets is checked regularly on the balance sheet date. A review also takes place if circumstances indicate that the value could be reduced.
Extraordinary depreciation is carried out if, as a result of changed circumstances, there is an expected permanent impairment. The recoverability is determined by
comparing the book value of the respective asset with the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount corresponds to the higher value from the use or sale of the asset
concerned. If this has fallen below the book value, an impairment loss is made. If the fair value of an asset that has previously been subject to unscheduled depreciation
increases, the value is reversed. Goodwill is excluded from the write-up.

Goodwill is also subjected to an impairment test annually or if there are indications. The goodwill plus the allocated pro rata book value is compared with the realizable
value in use, derived from the discounted free cash flow of the company's cash-generating units. This calculation is based on a planning period of several years. To
extrapolate the cash flow forecast for periods outside the detailed planning period, a growth rate of 1% is assumed, which corresponds to the expected long-term growth
rate in the mechanical engineering sector.

Basic assumptions for the calculation of the fair value less costs to sell relate to the discount rates and the growth rate on which the extrapolation of the cash flow forecasts
for the multi-year plan was based.

Discount rates

The discount rates represent the current market assessments with regard to the risks assigned to the cash-generating units. The interest rate effect and the specific risks of
the assets are taken into account. The discount rate takes into account the risks of the Group and its segments and companies that would arise for a comparable investment
on the capital market and is based on the weighted average cost of capital (WACC). A uniform discount rate of 5.18% was used to calculate the fair value.

Sensitivity of the assumptions made

As part of the impairment test, scenario analyzes were created with different assumptions. Both an interest rate increase of 100 basis points and a deterioration in the EBIT
margin of up to 2% do not result in the book value exceeding the fair value.

Leases

Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG operates exclusively as a lessee and not as a lessor. Leases are accounted for in connection with building rental agreements and
vehicle leasing agreements.

Up to December 31, 2018, no leases had to be recognized in accordance with IAS 17. With the first-time application of IFRS 16, leases are recognized for the first time
that were previously classified as operating leases.
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At the beginning of the term of the lease, usage rights are initially valued at acquisition costs, which basically correspond to the valuation of the lease liability and, if
necessary, are adjusted by any direct costs (e.g. special leasing payments) and estimated costs for dismantling and restoration. In subsequent periods, the lease payments
are broken down into an interest and a repayment component to determine the loan on the balance sheet. The financing costs are to be distributed over the term of the
contract in such a way that a constant interest rate arises on the remaining debt. The value at which the asset is initially capitalized,

Short-term leasing agreements with a term of no more than 12 months (and without a purchase option) as well as leasing agreements in which the underlying asset of the
leasing agreement is of low value are not accounted for in accordance with the option.

The right of use and the lease liability are reassessed if the assessment of the exercise of termination options or the fixed lease payment of the contract changes.

Financial assets

The financial assets basically include other financial assets in the form of time deposits or comparable financial assets with a term of more than one year, which are
recognized at amortized cost.

Other long-term assets

The other non-current assets essentially include unsecuritized receivables that are recognized at amortized cost. If necessary, impairments are recognized in profit or loss in
accordance with IFRS 9.

Stocks

Raw materials and merchandise are generally valued at average acquisition cost or the lower net realizable value. Work in progress and finished goods are valued at
production cost or the lower net realizable value. In addition to the directly attributable costs, the production costs include the appropriate and necessary production and
material overheads as well as the related administrative costs that are subject to capitalization based on normal capacity utilization. Finished products are valued at
standard cost. Sufficient devaluations to the lower net realizable value are made for stocks that are stored for a longer period of time and in the event of reduced usability
or for loss-free valuation. If the reasons no longer apply, these will be made up again. Interest on borrowed capital is not taken into account.

Trade receivables and other short-term receivables

Trade receivables and other short-term receivables are reported at amortized cost or the lower applicable value. Possible and recognizable default risks with individual
receivables are taken into account by means of appropriate individual value adjustments.

Die Ermittlung der Wertberichtigungen zweifelhafter Forderungen beruht auf Ermessensentscheidungen und Beurteilungen einzelner Forderungen, bei denen neben
Kreditwürdigkeit und Zahlungsverzug des jeweiligen Kunden auch aktuelle Konjunkturentwicklungen, aktuelle Geschäftsentwicklungen, länderspezifische
Gegebenheiten, Erfahrungen der Vergangenheit etc. berücksichtigt wurden. Unverzinsliche oder niedrig verzinsliche Forderungen und Vermögenswerte mit Laufzeiten
über einem Jahr werden mit dem Barwert ausgewiesen.

Finanzinstrumente

Finanzinstrumente sind Verträge, die bei einem Unternehmen zu einem finanziellen Vermögenswert und bei dem Vertragspartner zu einer finanziellen Schuld oder einem
Eigenkapitalinstrument führen.

Finanzielle Vermögenswerte beinhalten insbesondere Forderungen aus Lieferungen und Leistungen, Zahlungsmittel, derivative finanzielle Vermögenswerte sowie
marktgängige Wertpapiere und ähnliche Geldanlagen und Finanzinvestitionen.

Finanzielle Vermögenswerte, mit Ausnahme der Forderungen aus Lieferungen und Leistungen, und Verbindlichkeiten werden erstmals am Handelstag erfasst, wenn
Hermle Vertragspartei nach den Verträgen über die Finanzinstrumente wird. Forderungen aus Lieferungen und Leistungen werden ab dem Zeitpunkt angesetzt, zu dem sie
entstanden sind.

Finanzielle Vermögenswerte, mit Ausnahme der Forderungen aus Lieferungen und Leistungen ohne wesentliche Finanzierungskomponente oder finanzielle
Verbindlichkeiten werden beim erstmaligen Ansatz zum beizulegenden Zeitwert bewertet. Bei Posten, die im Folgenden nicht der Kategorie erfolgswirksam zum
beizulegenden Zeitwert bewertet zuzuordnen sind, werden Transaktionskosten, die direkt mit dem Erwerb oder der Ausgabe zurechenbar sind, als
Anschaffungsnebenkosten erfasst. Forderungen aus Lieferungen und Leistungen ohne wesentliche Finanzierungskomponente werden beim erstmaligen Ansatz zum
Transaktionspreis (grundsätzlich entspricht dies den Anschaffungskosten) bewertet. Die Folgebewertung richtet sich nach der Klassifizierung der Finanzinstrumente.

Die Klassifizierung von Finanzinstrumenten basiert auf dem Geschäftsmodell, in welchem die Instrumente gehalten werden, sowie der Zusammensetzung der
vertraglichen Zahlungsströme. Die Festlegung des Geschäftsmodells erfolgt auf Portfolioebene und richtet sich nach der Intention des Managements sowie den
Transaktionsmustern der Vergangenheit. Die Prüfung der Zahlungsströme erfolgt auf Basis der einzelnen Instrumente.

Finanzielle Vermögenswerte werden nach IFRS 9 in die folgenden drei Kategorien eingestuft:

1. Finanzielle Vermögenswerte, die zu fortgeführten Anschaffungskosten bewertet werden,

2. Finanzielle Vermögenswerte, die erfolgsneutral zum beizulegenden Zeitwert bewertet werden und

3. Finanzielle Vermögenswerte, die erfolgswirksam zum beizulegenden Zeitwert bewertet werden.

Finanzielle Vermögenswerte, die zu fortgeführten Anschaffungskosten bewertet werden

Finanzielle Vermögenswerte, die zu fortgeführten Anschaffungskosten bewertet werden sind nichtderivative finanzielle Vermögenswerte mit vertraglichen Zahlungen, die
ausschließlich aus Zins- und Tilgungszahlungen auf den ausstehenden Nominalbetrag bestehen und die mit dem Ziel gehalten werden, die vertraglich vereinbarten
Zahlungsströme zu vereinnahmen, wie z. B. Forderungen aus Lieferungen und Leistungen oder Zahlungsmittel und Zahlungsmitteläquivalente (Geschäftsmodell
"Halten").

Zahlungsmittel und Zahlungsmitteläquivalente können insbesondere Kassenbestände, Schecks, Sichteinlagen bei Banken sowie Schuldverschreibungen und
Einlagenzertifikate mit einer Restlaufzeit zum Anschaffungszeitpunkt von bis zu drei Monaten umfassen, die nur unwesentlichen Wertschwankungsrisiken unterliegen.
Zahlungsmittel und Zahlungsmitteläquivalente stimmen mit dem Zahlungsmittelfonds in der Konzern-Kapitalflussrechnung überein.

Nach dem erstmaligen Ansatz werden diese finanziellen Vermögenswerte zu fortgeführten Anschaffungskosten unter Anwendung der Effektivzinsmethode abzüglich
Wertminderungen bewertet. Gewinne und Verluste werden erfolgswirksam im Konzernergebnis erfasst, wenn die Kredite und Forderungen wertgemindert oder ausgebucht
werden.

Die Zinseffekte aus der Anwendung der Effektivzinsmethode sowie Effekte aus der Währungsumrechnung werden ebenfalls erfolgswirksam erfasst.
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Finanzielle Vermögenswerte, die erfolgsneutral zum beizulegenden Zeitwert bewertet werden

Financial assets that are measured at fair value without affecting profit or loss are non-derivative financial assets with contractual payments that consist exclusively of
interest and principal payments on the outstanding nominal amount and that are held both with the aim of receiving the contractually agreed cash flows To make sales, for
example to achieve a defined liquidity target (business model "hold and sell"). This category also includes equity instruments that are not held for trading and for which the
option to record changes in fair value in other comprehensive income was exercised.

After the initial valuation, financial assets in this category are valued at fair value with no effect on income, with unrealized gains or losses being recognized in other
comprehensive income. When debt instruments in this category are disposed of, the cumulative gains and losses from measurement at fair value recognized in other
comprehensive income are recognized in profit or loss. Interest received from financial assets that are valued at fair value with no effect on income are generally
recognized as interest income using the effective interest method. Changes in the fair value of equity instruments that are measured at fair value with no effect on income,
are not recognized in profit or loss, but are transferred to retained earnings when they are disposed of. Dividends are recognized in profit or loss when the legal claim to
payment arises.

Financial assets that are measured at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets whose cash flows do not consist exclusively of interest and redemption payments on
the outstanding nominal amount. This also includes financial assets that are not assigned to either the “Hold” or “Hold and sell” business model.

This also includes shares or interest-bearing securities that were acquired with the intention of selling them in the short term. Profits or losses from these financial assets
are recognized in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Hermle uses derivative financial instruments to hedge existing or planned basic operational transactions and the associated risks. Currently, forward exchange contracts are
mainly used to hedge foreign currency risks. Derivative financial instruments such as currency forwards are recognized by Hermle AG at their fair value when they are
first recorded. The fair values   are also relevant for the subsequent valuation. Derivative financial instruments with a positive fair value are shown under other receivables,
while those with a negative fair value are shown under other liabilities. In the context of hedge accounting, changes in the value of fair value hedges, which serve to hedge
against fluctuations in the value of balance sheet items, as well as fluctuations in the value of recognized underlying transactions are recognized in the income statement.
Changes in the value of cash flow hedges are offset directly against the accumulated other equity with no effect on income, eliminating the ineffective part and taking
deferred taxes into account.

Depreciation

In principle, the model of expected credit defaults based on the concept of 12-month credit defaults is to be applied. The valuation over the entire term is to be used if the
credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly on the balance sheet date since the initial recognition. The valuation over the entire term must always be carried
out for trade accounts receivable and for contractual assets without significant financing components.

The new impairment model is to be applied to financial assets that are valued at amortized cost or at fair value with no effect on income.

The impairments in the form of individual value adjustments take appropriate account of the expected default risks. Specific failures lead to the relevant receivable being
written off. As part of the determination of the individual value adjustments, receivables for which there is a potential need for devaluation are examined for impairment
and, if necessary, value adjusted. The determination is based on estimates and assessments of individual claims. In addition to the creditworthiness and default of payment
of the respective customer, current and possible future economic and industry developments, country-specific risks and past experience are taken into account.

The value adjustments on other receivables as part of the general approach were calculated on the basis of ratings and default probabilities for a period of six months and
reflect the short terms.

Cash and cash equivalents are deposited with banks and financial institutions with good to very good credit ratings. The allowance for cash and cash equivalents is
calculated on the basis of expected losses within twelve months. This reflects the short terms.

LIABILITY ITEMS

Provisions and liabilities

The tax provisions and other provisions take into account all recognizable legal and factual obligations and risks towards third parties on the balance sheet date that are
based on past business transactions or events that are likely to lead to an outflow of resources in the future and can be reliably estimated. They are formed in the amount of
their probable fulfillment amount and are not offset against any recourse claims. Long-term provisions are recognized at their discounted settlement amount on the balance
sheet date if the interest effect resulting from discounting is significant.

Financial liabilities are generally carried at the repayment amount.

Deferred taxes

Deferred taxes are reported for all temporary differences between the valuations in the IFRS balance sheet and the tax balance sheet of the individual companies as well as
for consolidation measures affecting income. In addition, deferred tax assets are accounted for for tax reduction claims based on tax loss carryforwards, provided that
future realizability is sufficiently assured. The tax rates used to calculate deferred taxes are the tax rates applicable or expected at the time of realization.

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Income and Expenses

According to IFRS 15, sales are recognized as soon as the customer gains control of the power of disposal over the products. This is basically the case when the customer
gains possession of the products. In addition, the resulting performance obligations must be identified for each contract. A contract or the sum of combined contracts can
include several performance obligations, each of which is subject to its own regulations with regard to the amount and time of revenue recognition.

At Hermle, contracts with customers for the sale of goods only contain guarantee and training services as separate performance obligations.

In principle, there are country-specific, statutory warranties in connection with the sales contracts, which are also taken into account after the application of IFRS 15 as
previously in accordance with IAS 37 on the formation of provisions. In addition, Hermle offers extended warranties, which are to be assessed as separate performance
obligations and to which a standalone selling price can be assigned. According to IFRS 15, sales are realized on a pro-rata basis after the warranty period has expired.
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Hermle normally grants extended guarantees of up to 36 months and thus beyond the statutory warranty periods (in Germany usually 24 months, abroad usually 12
months).

The training services are also allocated corresponding sales in the amount of the stand-alone selling price that is realized when the services are provided. Training services
in connection with the sale of machines are generally provided up to two years after the machines have been delivered.

For most service contracts, sales are recognized in accordance with IFRS 15 at the point in time when the services are provided. In the case of contracts that contain
various performance obligations, the allocation is based on the individual selling prices, just as the services are also offered in separate transactions. The stand-alone
selling prices also correspond to the fair value of the service components.

The sales for these performance obligations and the associated costs are recognized after the service has been performed.

The sales are shown less discounts and price reductions.

Operating expenses are recorded when the service is delivered or when the service is used. We set up provisions for warranty obligations at the time the products are sold.
Interest income and expenses are recorded in the appropriate period.

EXPLANATIONS TO THE BALANCE SHEET

(7) Fixed Assets

The development and distribution of fixed assets is shown in the fixed assets schedule.

The capitalized development costs from the development of new machine tool products are shown under intangible assets. At the end of the financial year they amounted
to EUR 83 thousand (previous year: EUR 319 thousand). The research and development expenses immediately recognized as expenses amounted to T-Euro 14,904
(previous year T-Euro 13,941).

The other intangible assets include technical know-how, order backlog, patents, software, licenses and similar rights as well as goodwill from the first-time consolidation
of HLS in the 2018 financial year.

The land and buildings are exclusively rights of use to rented space, which are capitalized in accordance with IFRS 16 "Leases". For further information on recognized
leases, see the "Leases" section.

An overview of the holdings held by Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG is shown under (3).

Leases

With the first-time application of IFRS 16, rights of use to assets resulting from these contracts will be capitalized for building rental agreements and vehicle leasing
agreements previously classified as operating leases.

Land, land rights and
buildings including
buildings on third-

party land  
T-Euro

Other equipment,
factory and office

equipment  
T-Euro

Total  
T-Euro

Book values   of the rights of use on the reporting date 730 212 942
Depreciation amounts rights of use 227 128 356
Additions to usage rights in the financial year 0 113 113
Changes through reassessment of usage rights (identification as access) 0 29 29
Interest expense from the lease liabilities 8th 2 10
Lease liabilities -733 -188 -921
Cash outflows for leases -232 -104 -336
Leasing obligations up to 1 year 1 to 5 years Over 5 years total
Minimum lease payments 339 596 0 935
Present value 338 583 0 921

The marginal borrowing rate used in 2019 is around 0.6%. In the case of building leases, the terms can be up to 5 years. The term of the vehicle leasing contracts is usually
3 to 4 years.

(8) Other long-term assets

The item only includes profit sharing from life insurance companies.

(9) Inventories

The inventories break down as follows:

12/31/2019  
T-Euro

12/31/2018  
T-Euro

Raw materials and supplies 36,838 31,330
Work in progress, work in progress 19.097 19,512
Finished products and goods 16,950 15,498
Prepayments made for inventories 1,036 1,265

73,921 67.605
The book value of the inventories stated at net selling price amounted to T-Euro 9,613 (previous year T-Euro 10,045). The increase in the value adjustment on inventories
recognized in profit or loss in the financial year amounted to T-Euro 823 (previous year increase of T-Euro 303). Payments on account are shown net without sales tax.

(10) Trade receivables and other short-term receivables



1/27/2021 Search Result - Federal Gazette

https://www.bundesanzeiger.de/pub/en/search-result?10 23/37

12/31/2019  
T-Euro

12/31/2018  
T-Euro

12/31/2019  
T-Euro

12/31/2018  
T-Euro

Requests from deliveries and services
To third parties 64,224 71,719
Against companies with which there is a participation relationship 0 0

64,224 71,719
Other short-term receivables
Derivative financial instruments 249 0
Tax Refund Claims 4,804 1,324
Prepaid expenses 835 778
Customer receivables from down payments 5,641 3,568
Remaining miscellaneous assets 1,527 1,170

13,056 6,840
total 77,280 78,559

Trade receivables and other short-term receivables with a remaining term of more than one year amounted to EUR 1,983 thousand (previous year: EUR 2,130 thousand).
The remaining receivables and other assets only had remaining terms of less than one year.

The derivative financial instruments shown under other current receivables are shown at market value in accordance with IFRS 9. They relate to both the so-called
effective and ineffective part of the positive market values   of currency hedging transactions in the context of accounting for hedging relationships in accordance with IFRS
9. To the extent that they serve as fair value hedges for hedging purposes, the positive market values   are offset by negative market values   in the balance sheet items of the
underlying transactions.

The remaining other assets also contain the main items of short-term receivables from suppliers from returns and short-term receivables from employees.

The following is a breakdown of the non-impaired trade receivables, classified according to overdue:

Book value From that: From that:
total Neither impaired nor overdue not impaired and overdue in the following time bands

T-Euro T-Euro
<3 months  

T-Euro
3-6 months  

T-Euro
6-12 months  

T-Euro
Requests from deliveries and services December 31, 2019 64,224 22,582 5,843 275 0
Requests from deliveries and services December 31, 2018 71,719 43,356 12.114 3 0

not impaired and
overdue in the

following time bands>
12 months  

T-Euro
Requests from deliveries and services 0
Requests from deliveries and services 0

With regard to the trade receivables that are neither impaired nor overdue, there are no indications as of the reporting date that the debtors will not meet their payment
obligations.

The following table shows the change in the value adjustments on the balance of trade receivables and other short-term receivables:

2019  
T-Euro

2018  
T-Euro

Value adjustments at the beginning of the financial year 6,725 5,987
Adjustment amount for transition to IFRS 9 0 -652
Amount recorded in the income statement in the reporting period 574 1,387
Writing off receivables -541 -74
Currency translation effects 89 77
Value adjustments at the end of the financial year 6,847 6,725

The following table shows the expenses for the complete write-off of trade receivables and the income from the receipt of write-off trade receivables:

2019  
T-Euro

2018  
T-Euro

Expenses for the complete write-off of receivables 814 76
Income from the receipt of written off receivables 0 0

(11) Securities and other investments

In the year under review, time deposits with a term of more than three months in the amount of T-Euro 10,000 (previous year T-Euro 6,505) are shown under this item.

(12) Means of Payment

The means of payment essentially relate to bank balances.

12/31/2019  
T-Euro

12/31/2018  
T-Euro

Bank balances 107,512 128,570
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12/31/2019  
T-Euro

12/31/2018  
T-Euro

Cash on hand 28 26th
107,540 128,596

(13) Equity

The share capital is unchanged compared to the previous year and is divided into 4,000,000 ordinary shares and 1,000,000 non-voting preference shares. The preference
shares carry an additional dividend of EUR 0.05. The arithmetical nominal value of the shares is EUR 3.00 per share.

The capital reserve contains transfers from the sale of own shares acquired in previous financial years on the stock exchange.

In the financial year, T-Euro 0 was added to the revenue reserves of Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG. In the previous year, T-Euro 7,500 was transferred to the
revenue reserves of Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG.

In the supervisory board meeting on March 18, 2020, the management board proposed that the annual general meeting should use the net profit 2019 of Maschinenfabrik
Berthold Hermle AG in the amount of T-Euro 83,992 to pay an amount of T-Euro 50,050 by paying a dividend totaling EUR 10, 00 per ordinary share and EUR 10.05 per
preference share and the remaining amount of EUR 33,942 thousand must be carried forward to a new account. This dividend proposal will be re-evaluated jointly by the
Management Board and the Supervisory Board at the Supervisory Board meeting on April 28, 2020 on the basis of the further development of the corona pandemic.

In the 2019 financial year, a dividend totaling EUR 15.00 per common share and EUR 15.05 per preferred share was distributed for the 2018 financial year.

The differences from the currency conversion include the differences from the conversion of foreign subsidiaries.

The accumulated other equity contains the effects of the valuation of derivative financial instruments with no effect on income. In the 2019 financial year, income
(previous year expenses) from the market valuation of derivative financial instruments that are attributable to cash flow hedges in the amount of EUR 68 thousand
(previous year: EUR 112 thousand) was offset against equity with no effect on income. In addition, an amount of EUR 112 thousand (previous year: EUR 453 thousand)
was withdrawn from equity and recognized as an expense (previous year income) in the result for the period.

The development of equity and its components are shown in the statement of changes in equity.

(14) Shares of other shareholders

The remaining position relates to the share in the equity of Hermle WWE AG due to the other shareholders.

(15) Provisions

As of 1.1.2019  
T-Euro

Consumption  
T-Euro

Dissolution of  
T-Euro

Allocation of  
T-Euro

Other changes  
T-Euro

As of December 31, 2019  
T-Euro

Tax provisions 4.117 3,388 99 1.004 5 1,639
Personnel provisions 19,636 17,906 211 17,480 45 19,044
Other provisions
in sales and purchasing 25,936 15,817 1,124 18,061 123 27,179
for other areas 1,015 799 74 949 4th 1,095

26,951 16,616 1,198 19,010 127 28,273
50,704 37,910 1,508 37,494 177 48,957

dv. short time provision 48,889 37,515 1,488 37,145 158 47,187
dv. long-term provisions 1,815 394 19th 349 19th 1,770

In the personnel area, the provisions essentially relate to vacation and flexitime provisions, provisions for partial retirement obligations and bonus payments. The sales and
purchasing risks relate to warranties, goodwill and other subsequent services, purchase or repurchase obligations and a number of other purchasing and sales risks. In the
remaining area, other open services and liabilities are shown, the reason and / or their final amount not yet determined.

As in the previous year, long-term provisions relate to personnel provisions, in particular for anniversary and partial retirement obligations.

The other changes included currency and interest rate effects totaling EUR 177 thousand (previous year: EUR 192 thousand). The effects from the compounding and from
changes in the discount rate in the amount of T-Euro 30 (previous year: T-Euro 35) related to personnel provisions with T-Euro 19 (previous year: T-Euro 22) and T-Euro
11 (previous year: T-Euro 22). T-Euro 13) on other provisions.

(16) Liabilities

The liabilities relate to:

12/31/2019  
T-Euro

12/31/2018  
T-Euro

Other long-term liabilities
Lease liabilities 921 0
Short-term trade payables
to third parties 8,594 9,538
towards companies with which a participation relationship exists 0 0

8,594 9,538
Other current liabilities
Payments received 18,537 31,456
Contractual debt from down payment invoices 5,641 3,568
Contract liability 2,918 2,382
Derivative financial instruments 522 364
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12/31/2019  
T-Euro

12/31/2018  
T-Euro

Tax liabilities 4,894 8,918
Social security liabilities 391 420
Other liabilities 6,726 6,845

39,629 53,953
Breakdown of liabilities according to remaining term
up to 1 year 48.223 63,491
1 to 5 years 0 0
more than 5 years 0 0

48.223 63,491
Customary retention of title applies to short-term trade payables.

In accordance with IFRS 9, the derivative financial instruments reported under other liabilities are recognized at market value. They relate to both the so-called effective
and ineffective part of the negative market values   of currency hedging transactions in the context of accounting for hedging relationships in accordance with IFRS 9. To
the extent that they serve as fair value hedges for hedging purposes, the negative market values   are offset by opposing increases in the balance sheet items of the
underlying transactions.

The advance payments received are shown net without sales tax.

EXPLANATIONS TO THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

(17) Sales

The sales break down regionally as follows:

In T-euros Domestic companies Foreign sales Group
01-12 / 19 01-12 / 18 0112/19 0112/18 01-12 / 19 01-12 / 18

Sales areas
Federal Republic of Germany 197,630 186,802 0 0 197,630 186,802
Other countries 92,748 85,432 172,721 180,688 265,469 266.120
total 290.378 272.234 172,721 180,688 463.099 452.922
Product and service areas
Sales of machine tools, accessories and spare parts 276.799 259.334 164.199 173.020 440.998 432.354
Service and training services 13,579 12,900 8,522 7,668 22.101 20,568
total 290.378 272.234 172,721 180,688 463.099 452.922
Revenue from contracts with customers 290.378 272.234 172,721 180,688 463.099 452.922
Third party sales 290.378 272.234 172,721 180,688 463.099 452.922

The contract balances are as follows:

12/31/2019  
T-Euro

12/31/2018  
T-Euro

Trade accounts receivable from third parties 64,224 71,719
Customer receivables from down payment invoices 5,640 3,568
total 69,864 75.287
Payments received 18,537 31,456
Contract liabilities 2,918 2,382
Contractual debt from down payment invoices 5,640 3,568
total 27,095 37,406

The advance payments received relate to advance payments received from customers for machine sales. The contractual liabilities essentially contain warranty and training
services that have already been calculated but not yet provided.

The contractual debt from down payment invoices is due, not yet paid down payment invoices for which there is an unconditional claim to payment.

Contract assets do not exist.

In the 2019 financial year, sales of EUR 1,560 thousand (previous year: EUR 1,412 thousand) were recorded, which were included in the contractual liabilities at the
beginning of the financial year.

Hermle expects that amounts included in the contract liabilities as of December 31, 2019 in the amount of EUR 2,209 thousand in 2020, EUR 593 thousand in 2021 and
the remaining amount of EUR 116 thousand in 2022 will result in sales.

(18) Other operating income

The other operating income relates to:

2019  
T-Euro

2018  
T-Euro

Income from the release of provisions 1,409 1,540
Income from the reversal of value adjustments 3,924 3,037
Income from asset disposals 1,433 778
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2019  
T-Euro

2018  
T-Euro

Currency gains from exchange rate differences and derivative financial instruments 0 0
Remaining other operating income 1,425 1,735

8,191 7,090
The remaining other operating income includes, as essential components, income from renting and leasing, from passing on costs and compensation payments from
insurance companies and other third parties.

(19) Cost of materials

The material costs relate to:

2019  
T-Euro

2018  
T-Euro

Expenses for raw materials and supplies and for purchased goods 181.195 180,658
Expenses for purchased services 8,498 8,605

189,693 189,263

(20) Personnel Expenses

The personnel expenses include:

2019  
T-Euro

2018  
T-Euro

Wages and salaries 96,379 91.164
social taxes 15,870 15,071

112,249 106,235
As in the previous year, there were no pension expenses.

The average employed were:

2019 2018
Wage earners 456 428
Employees 749 719
trainee 91 78
total 1,296 1,225

According to the resolution of the Annual General Meeting on July 6, 2016, the remuneration of the Management Board is not stated individually, but for the entire
Management Board. The total remuneration of the Board of Management was T-Euro 3,211. Of this, T-Euro 693 related to basic payments including the use of a car and
direct insurance. It also included performance-related components of EUR 2,518 thousand. The total remuneration of the Supervisory Board amounted to T-Euro 80.

(21) Depreciation

The depreciation mainly relates to scheduled depreciation on intangible assets and property, plant and equipment. In the financial year, unscheduled depreciation in the
amount of T-Euro 14 (previous year: T-Euro 5) was included.

(22) Other operating expenses

2019  
T-Euro

2018  
T-Euro

Formation of allowances on accounts receivable 3,957 4,348
Currency losses 864 599
Remaining other operating expenses 41,579 40,031

46,400 44,978
The remaining other operating expenses mainly relate to expenses for sales, service and administration as well as maintenance expenses for buildings, operating and office
equipment. In addition, so-called cost taxes for vehicle and property taxes as well as foreign representative offices are included.

The other operating expenses include expenses related to leases in the amount of EUR 1,377 thousand. Of this, EUR 1,238 thousand are attributable to short-term leases
and EUR 139 thousand to leases for assets of low value that are not current.

For the audit of the annual financial statements and the consolidated financial statements of Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG, fees of the auditor of EUR 220
thousand (previous year: EUR 190 thousand) were charged in 2019. Of this, T-Euro 20 relates to the previous year. In addition, T-Euro 0 (previous year: T-Euro 0) for
other confirmation services, T-Euro 0 (previous year: T-Euro 0) for tax advisory services and T-Euro 4 (previous year: T-Euro 0) for other services charged.

(23) Other financial result

The remaining financial result breaks down as follows:

2019  
T-Euro

2018  
T-Euro

Revaluation gain in connection with the acquisition of shares in HLS (see explanations under (3)) 0 4,927
Other interest and similar income 189 298
Write-downs on securities and other investments -0 -131
Interest and similar expenses -294 -270
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2019  
T-Euro

2018  
T-Euro

-105 4,824
The write-downs on securities and other investments in the previous year related to the time-dependent, interest-related depreciation of the fixed-income securities
acquired above their nominal value up to the point of repayment.

In addition to external interest, interest expense relates to internal expenses from the compounding of short-term and long-term provisions as well as interest components
from the difference between spot and forward rates of currency hedging transactions. Differences from spot and forward rates from currency hedging transactions are also
included in the interest income.

(24) Taxes on income and earnings

Income taxes relate to:

2019  
T-Euro

2018  
T-Euro

Current taxes 29,751 30,619
Deferred taxes 131 -1,536

29,882 29,083
The following table converts the calculated or expected to the actual income tax expense and explains the main differences in a summarized form:

2019  
T-Euro

2018  
T-Euro

Earnings before income taxes 114.092 116,554
Calculated income tax in% 26.50% 26.50%
Calculated income tax 30,234 30,887
Tax-free income 0 -1,306
Non-deductible expenses + 258 + 192
Other aperiodic taxes 0 + 100
Change of tax rates 0 0
Differences a. Tax rates / currency conversion -617 -810
Loss carryforwards not taken into account + 7 + 20
Total tax expense 29,882 29,083

The calculated income tax for domestic companies was calculated on the basis of a tax rate of 26.50% (previous year: 26.50%), the deferred taxes were calculated on the
basis of a tax rate of 26.50% (previous year: 26.50%). The tax rate includes trade tax, corporation tax and solidarity surcharge.

The reported deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to the following balance sheet items:

12/31/2019  
T-Euro

12/31/2018  
T-Euro

Deferred tax assets
Tax loss carryforwards 0 0
Consolidations 607 605
Capital assets 124 132
Inventories and Receivables 1,429 1,799
accruals 491 504
liabilities 0 0
Derivative financial instruments 138 96
Contract liabilities 442 435
total 3.231 3,571
Offsetting with deferred tax liabilities 0 0
total 3.231 3,571
dv. Offsetted in equity with no effect on income 39 30th
Deferred tax liabilities
Capital assets 1,050 1,239
Inventories and Receivables 193 260
Securities 0 0
accruals 305 316
Derivative financial instruments 66 0
Others 27 3
total 1,641 1,818
Offsetting with deferred tax assets 0 0
total 1,641 1,818
dv. Offsetted in equity with no effect on income 60 0

The deferred tax assets are shown under the item long-term assets in the balance sheet, the deferred tax liabilities under the item long-term liabilities.

Tax loss carryforwards amounting to T-Euro 818 (previous year: T-Euro 611) have not been recognized due to uncertain realization possibilities.
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(25) Earnings per share

2019  
T-Euro

2018  
T-Euro

Annual surplus:
Lt. Profit and Loss Account 84.210 87,471
Minority interests in the result -5 -3
Result after minority interests 84.205 87,468
Accrued Preferred Dividends -50 -50
Result after minorities and preferential dividends 84,155 87,418
Weighted average in pieces:
Outstanding Common Stock 4,000,000 4,000,000
Preference Shares Outstanding 1,000,000 1,000,000
Sum of all share classes 5,000,000 5,000,000
Average weighted number of shares: 5,000,000 5,000,000
Basic earnings per share in euros:
Per common share 16.83 17.48
Per preference share including dividend preference 16.88 17.53

The company owns a cumulative 0 (previous year: 0) of its own preference shares. There were no other changes in the equity instruments either. The preference shares
receive an additional dividend of EUR 0.05 per share, which can be paid at a later date, compared to the ordinary shares. This additional share in the profit is initially
reduced uniformly when calculating the earnings per share and only added again to the earnings per preferred share.

(26) Cash flow statement

The development of the cash flows and their effect on the fund of cash equivalents are shown in the cash flow statement. A distinction is made between cash flows from
operating activities and from investing and financing activities. The cash flow from operating activities is determined using the indirect method, while the cash flow from
investing and financing activities is determined on the basis of payments. Effects from currency translation and changes in the scope of consolidation are adjusted.

The cash and cash equivalents from cash on hand and credit balances at banks, as explained under (12), form the fund of cash equivalents.

Tax payments and interest payments are shown in full as cash outflows or inflows from operating activities. The cash flow from operating activities included cash flows
from interest and other financial income of EUR 15 thousand (previous year: EUR 307 thousand) and cash flows from taxes of EUR -39,707 thousand (previous year:
EUR -25,079 thousand).

(27) Segment reporting

For segment reporting, Hermle follows IFRS 8 "Operating Segments", which requires the division of the segments according to the "Management Approach". Information
on the operating segments based on the internal organizational and management structure is then published. The key here is the internal financial reporting to the
company's top management body, which is represented at Hermle by the Executive Board.

Against this background, this segment report is based on the segmentation corresponding to sales activities. The segments are divided into the homogeneous activities of
the foreign sales companies and sales branches, which cover the function of authorized dealers and sales branches, and the remaining domestic companies, which report
their results on an ongoing basis. The companies and branches are assigned to the segments according to their affiliation. The international sales segment includes the
companies Hermle USA INC. (formerly Hermle Machine Company LLC) and now Hermle Properties INC., Hermle Nederland BV, Hermle Italia SRL, Hermle (Schweiz)
AG, Hermle WWE AG (Switzerland), Hermle Vostok OOO (Russia), Hermle Uljanovsk OOO (Russia) and Hermle Mexico S. DE RL DE CV, founded in 2019, as well as
the sales branches of Hermle AG in Austria, the Czech Republic Republic, Denmark and Poland. Hermle Properties Inc. was still included in the domestic segment in the
previous year as part of an operating facility of Maschinenfabrik Berthold AG. The previous year's figures have been adjusted accordingly. As a result, sales in the
previous year remained unchanged in the segments. As a result, the total of long-term assets in the international segment increased by T-Euro 1.009, short-term assets by T-
Euro 43 and liabilities decreased by T-Euro 1,167. The operating result in the international segment increased by T-Euro 196 and the annual surplus by T-Euro 151, while
the corresponding earnings figures in the domestic segment decreased by the same amount. In contrast, the long-term assets in the domestic segment decreased by T-Euro
1,009, the short-term assets by T-Euro 1,211 and the liabilities remained unchanged.

Sales and services between the segments are offset on the basis of customary market conditions. Hermle measures the success of the segments primarily on the basis of the
operating result.

Receivables and liabilities, provisions, income and expenses between the segments are eliminated in the consolidation effects column. The consolidation effects column
also shows items that cannot be allocated to the segments mentioned. The segment reporting is based on the same accounting and valuation methods as in the consolidated
financial statements. The assets of the segments generally include all assets, with cross-segment relationships being included in the Consolidations column. However, in
the area of   financial assets, all shares, participations and loans to companies are excluded from the assets,

Due to the customer structure and business activities of Hermle, there was no significant concentration on individual customers or regions in the reporting years.

(28) Contingent Liabilities and Other Financial Obligations

The following contingent liabilities and other financial obligations existed on the balance sheet date (previous year):

12/31/2019  
T-Euro

12/31/2018  
T-Euro

Contingent Liabilities
Liability from cooperative shares 5 5
Other financial obligations
Obligations from operational rental and leasing contracts
due up to 1 year 0 451
due from 1 to 5 years 0 735
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12/31/2019  
T-Euro

12/31/2018  
T-Euro

due after 5 years 0 0
According to IAS 17, there were other financial obligations from operating leases in the previous year.

(29) Financial Instruments

Original financial instruments

The following section contains further key explanations of the financial instruments on the balance sheet and their effect on the income statement in terms of IFRS 7. The
following overviews show the composition of the financial instruments according to balance sheet items and valuation categories, the fair value and the valuation results
according to valuation categories.

The effects of the first-time application of IFRS 9 on the consolidated financial statements are explained under (2). Due to the right to choose during the changeover, the
comparative values   have not been adjusted.

The valuations of the financial instruments according to valuation categories according to IFRS 9 as of December 31, 2019 are as follows:

assets

Balance sheet valuation according to IFRS 9

Book value 12/31/2019  
EUR thousand

Amortized cost of  
EUR k

Fair value through
profit or loss in k  

euros

Fair value with no
effect on  

income in EUR
thousand

Fair value 12/31/2019  
EUR thousand

Long-term assets
Other financial assets 5 5 5
Other long-term assets 3,007 3,007 3,007
Short-term assets
Requests from deliveries and services 64,224 64,224 64,224
Other current assets 6,876 6,876 6,876
Derivative assets 16 16 16
Securities and other investments 10,000 10,000 10,000
Means of payment 107,540 107,540 107,540

191,668 191,647 16 5 191,668
liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Financial liabilities - -
Derivative financial instruments - -
Short term liabilities
liabilities from goods and services 8,594 8,594 8,594
Other liabilities 12,421 12,421 12,421
Derivative financial instruments 351 351 351

The valuations of the financial instruments according to valuation categories according to IFRS 9 as of December 31, 2018 are as follows:

assets

Balance sheet valuation according to IFRS 9

Book value December 31,
2018  

EUR thousand
Amortized cost of  

EUR k

Fair value through
profit or loss in k  

euros

Fair value with no
effect on  

income in EUR
thousand

Fair value 12/31/2018  
EUR thousand

Long-term assets
Other financial assets 5 5 5
Other long-term assets 29 29 29
Short-term assets
Requests from deliveries and
services

71,719 71,719 71,719

Other current assets 4,504 4,504 4,504
Securities and other investments 6,505 6,505 6,505
Means of payment 128,596 128,596 128,596

211,358 211,353 5 211,358
liabilities
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Balance sheet valuation according to IFRS 9

Book value December 31,
2018  

EUR thousand
Amortized cost of  

EUR k

Fair value through
profit or loss in k  

euros

Fair value with no
effect on  

income in EUR
thousand

Fair value 12/31/2018  
EUR thousand

Long-term liabilities
Financial liabilities - -
Derivative financial instruments - -
Short term liabilities
liabilities from goods and services 9,538 9,538 9,538
Other liabilities 10,257 10,257 10,257
Derivative financial instruments 215 215 215

The net results of the financial instruments according to valuation categories for the 2019 financial year according to IFRS 9 are as follows:

From interest / dividends from subsequent reviews: from departure 2019

T-Euro
At fair value  

T-Euro
Currency conversion  

T-Euro
Value adjustment  

T-Euro T-Euro T-Euro
Financial assets
Valued at amortized cost 173 -864 -91 814 32
Measured at fair value with no effect on income 0 0
Measured at fair value through profit or loss 0 0
Financial liabilities
Valued at amortized cost -254 -254
Measured at fair value through profit or loss -30 -30
total -81 -30 -864 -91 814 -253

The net results of the financial instruments according to valuation categories are as follows for the 2018 financial year in accordance with IFRS 9:

From interest / dividends from subsequent reviews: from departure 2018

T-Euro
At fair value  

T-Euro
Currency conversion  

T-Euro
Value adjustment  

T-Euro T-Euro T-Euro
Financial assets
Valued at amortized cost 303 -560 -1,311 -65 -1,632
Measured at fair value with no effect on income 0 0
Measured at fair value through profit or loss -131 -131
Financial liabilities
Valued at amortized cost -235 -235
Measured at fair value through profit or loss -35 -35
total 68 -166 -560 -1,311 -65 -1,998

The net gains and losses from loans and receivables essentially include changes in value adjustments, currency conversions, income from incoming payments and
reversals, and interest income.

The determination of the fair values   of the financial instruments shown in the tables above is based on a fair value hierarchy that takes into account the importance of the
input data used for the valuation and is structured as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets (prices adopted unchanged) for identical assets and liabilities;

Level 2: for the asset or liability either directly (as a price) or indirectly (derived from prices) observable input data that do not represent a quoted price according to Level
1;

Level 3: input data used that are not based on observable market data for the measurement of the asset and liability (unobservable input data).

In the financial year and in the previous year, the fair values   reported were determined exclusively according to level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging strategies

Financial risk management

As of December 31, 2019, the Hermle Group had an above-average equity ratio of 72.3%. The stock of liquid funds and securities amounted to T-Euro 117,540 on the
balance sheet date. The liquid funds and securities relate to debtors with a generally good credit rating. Due to these circumstances, the Hermle Group is not dependent on
interest-bearing borrowed capital to finance replacement and expansion investments and the distribution of dividends. The Hermle Group is always careful to maintain
sufficient financial reserves in order to be able to react quickly to any changes in the economic situation.

In the following, the financial risks are discussed insofar as they are significant for the Hermle Group.

Interest rate risks

Interest rate risks arise from investing liquid funds in the form of variable and fixed-interest investments. There are no further interest rate risks, especially since there is no
interest-bearing debt. At the end of the year, cash and cash equivalents were mainly invested with remaining terms of less than one year, in some cases even with terms of
up to three months and thus practically equated with variable interest rates.

An increase in interest rates of 0.5% over the term of one year would mean that the cash and cash equivalents held at the end of the year would increase the interest result
for the following year by around EUR 0.2 million (previous year EUR 0.3 million . Euro) could improve. The risk of a deterioration in interest rates is increased, as
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negative interest rates can now be expected on some of the sight deposits at banks due to the ECB's policy. So far we have only been affected by the negative interest rate
to a limited extent, but in 2020 in the event of an economic downturn, increased negative interest rates of up to 100% (previous year: 100% expectation) can be passed on
to bank customers. The effect is likely to be up to approx. EUR -0.6 million (previous year: EUR -0.5 million).

Default risks

There are no significant concentrations of default risks in the Hermle Group, as no end customer generates more than 10% of the Group's sales. In addition, the risk of
default is further reduced through continuous monitoring of our customers' payment behavior and consistent receivables management.

The liquid funds are invested in securities or debtors with a generally good credit rating, so that from today's perspective, despite latent risks from the capital markets and
for the banks due to the eroding profitability of the ECB's interest rate policy, short-term default risks should not be assumed. In addition, rather short investment periods
are currently chosen. The risk of default of completely overindebted states, which is indirect for us, if it occurs, cannot be assessed with regard to the probability of
occurrence, but has increased over the past few years and can be assessed as "high" or "very high" in the medium term for individual states, particularly in the euro zone.
The so-called "Stability Pact" and defined new indebtedness limits introduced countermeasures to limit the risks, but these only dampen new indebtedness and therefore
have little effect on the accumulated debt level. In other countries, temporary exemptions were repeatedly granted or, most recently, the binding nature and, due to the
economic slowdown, the meaning of these rules being disputed, so that the guarantee of future compliance is increasingly in question. The maximum default risk results
from the book value of the financial assets recognized in the balance sheet. and defined new indebtedness limits, countermeasures to limit the risk were introduced, but
these only dampen new indebtedness and therefore have little effect on the accumulated debt level. In other countries, temporary exemptions were repeatedly granted or,
most recently, the binding nature and, due to the economic slowdown, the meaning of these rules being disputed, so that the guarantee of future compliance is increasingly
in question. The maximum default risk results from the book value of the financial assets recognized in the balance sheet. and defined new indebtedness limits,
countermeasures to limit the risk were introduced, but these only dampen new indebtedness and therefore have little effect on the accumulated debt level. In other
countries, temporary exemptions were repeatedly granted or, most recently, the binding nature and, due to the slowdown in the economy, the meaning of these rules has
been disputed, so that the guarantee of future compliance with the rules is increasingly in question. The maximum default risk results from the book value of the financial
assets recognized in the balance sheet. In other countries, temporary exemptions were repeatedly granted or, most recently, the binding nature and, due to the slowdown in
the economy, the meaning of these rules has been disputed, so that the guarantee of future compliance with the rules is increasingly in question. The maximum default risk
results from the book value of the financial assets recognized in the balance sheet. In other countries, temporary exemptions were repeatedly granted or, most recently, the
binding nature and, due to the economic slowdown, the meaning of these rules being disputed, so that the guarantee of future compliance is increasingly in question. The
maximum default risk results from the book value of the financial assets recognized in the balance sheet.

Liquidity risks

The Hermle Group has an above-average level of cash and cash equivalents. Current liquidity risks cannot be identified due to this fact, whereby the stability of the
German banking system is assumed to be given despite the eroding profitability (see explanations on default risks).

Exchange rate risks

Exchange rate risks exist in particular where receivables and liabilities exist in a currency other than the functional currency of the respective company or will arise in the
form of future cash flows if business progresses as planned. The hedging of exchange rate risks relates to payment flows; Foreign currency risks that do not lead to cash
flows are not hedged. These are, for example, risks from the conversion of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries and permanent establishments into the group
reporting currency, the euro.

The exchange rate risks of the Hermle Group essentially relate to the balance of trade accounts receivable in foreign currency and the inflow of cash in foreign currency.
Derivative instruments are used at Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG to hedge against these currency risks. These serve to hedge the foreign currency receivables from
Group companies existing on the balance sheet date, which are generally hedged, and also to hedge cash flows that are not yet recorded on the balance sheet date but are
pending or anticipated.

To present market risks, IFRS 7 requires sensitivity analyzes of the effects hypothetical changes in relevant risk variables have on the annual result and equity. As of
December 31, 2019 and also as of December 31, 2018, all significant trade receivables from Group companies in Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG were hedged in
foreign currency by forward exchange transactions that were classified as fair value hedges. These closed currency positions result in compensatory effects in each case, so
that there are no changes in equity and annual results.

If the main foreign currencies were to be depreciated by 5% in 2019, income of EUR 0.6 million would have been generated for the 2019 financial year (previous year:
EUR 0.3 million), with a corresponding increase in value a loss of EUR 0.7 million. Euros (previous year loss of 0.4 million euros). A decrease in value of the main
foreign currencies by 5% in 2019 would have resulted in a decrease in group equity as of December 31, 2019 by EUR 0.7 million (previous year: decrease in EUR 0.4
million); with a corresponding appreciation of foreign currencies, an increase of 0.7 million euros (previous year increase of 0.4 million euros).

The nominal volumes underlying the derivative financial instruments and their market values   on the balance sheet date are listed in the following table:

12/31/2019  
T-Euro

12/31/2018  
T-Euro

Forward currency sales:
Nominal volume 32,709 27,186
dv. Remaining term> 1 year 0 0
Positive market values 249 0
dv. Fair value hedges <1 year (19) (0)
dv. Fair value hedges> 1 year (0) (0)
dv. Cash flow hedges <1 year (230) (0)
dv. Cash flow hedges> 1 year (0) (0)
Negative market values -522 -364
dv. Fair value hedges <1 year (-174) (-107)
dv. Fair value hedges> 1 year (0) (0)
dv. Cash flow hedges <1 year (-348) (-257)
dv. Cash flow hedges> 1 year (0) (0)
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The market value corresponds to the profits and losses with a fictitious closing of the derivatives on the balance sheet date. The maximum default risk of derivative
financial instruments corresponds to the sum of the positive market values. It concerns possible asset losses that can result from the non-fulfillment of contractual
obligations of individual trading partners. To reduce this risk, derivative financial instruments are only entered into with banks of the creditworthiness described.

Changes in market values   are generally recognized in profit or loss. If future planned cash flows in foreign currencies are effectively hedged within the meaning of IFRS 9,
the rules of a cash flow hedge are applied. The market values   of the corresponding hedging transactions are then initially offset against equity under the item "Cumulative
other equity" with no effect on income and are only recognized in profit or loss when the underlying transaction is realized.

(30) estimates

Estimates flow into the valuation of trade accounts receivable, inventories and the determination of other provisions. In the case of the trade receivables shown in the
balance sheet, these essentially relate to the probability of default for the individual debtors and the amount of default, in the case of inventories that have been in storage
for a longer period of time or inventories with a lower turnover rate, the future usability and, in the case of the other provisions shown, both the probability of occurrence
of events as well as assumed settlement amounts, which, if possible, are determined on the basis of past experience.

(31) Events after the balance sheet date

The effects of the corona pandemic are shown in the chapters after the balance sheet date and forecast report within the combined management report. The risks and
economic imponderables from this pandemic can still be assessed as very high. There have been no other events with significant effects on the earnings, financial and asset
situation of Hermle AG and the Group.

(32) Relationships with related companies and persons

In addition to the subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements and participations not included in the consolidated financial statements, members of the
board of directors or supervisory board and shareholders with significant influence within the meaning of IAS 24 "Related Party Disclosures" can be considered.
Relationships with this group of related companies and persons are handled at normal market conditions.

There are no related companies that are controlled by the Hermle Group or over which the Hermle Group exercises significant influence but which are not included in the
consolidated financial statements.

The supplies and services provided by the group to other related companies amounted to T-Euro 112 (previous year: T-Euro 85), the supplies and services purchased by the
group from other related companies amounted to T-Euro 3,088 (previous year: T-Euro 3,020 ). As of the balance sheet date, the Group's receivables from other related
companies amounted to EUR 6k (previous year: EUR 6k), while the group's liabilities to other related companies amounted to EUR 2k (previous year: EUR 442k).

(33) Declaration in accordance with Section 161 AktG

The board of directors and the supervisory board declare that the recommendations of the government commission on the German Corporate Governance Code are not
complied with, with the exception of various individual points. As a justification, we would like to point out that Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG is based on the
principles of an open information policy that it has already practiced, which was implemented within the framework of the rules of procedure of the management board
and the supervisory board. The legal requirements are met in full.

For various reasons, the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board do not consider the implementation of additional recommendations of the Corporate Governance
Code to be appropriate. The recommendations under 2.3 are not complied with because the ordinary shares of Hermle AG with voting rights are not listed. The
recommendations under 3 and 4 are not complied with, as the applicable legal regulations together with the rules of procedure are judged to be completely sufficient by the
Management Board and the Supervisory Board. In addition, "external experts" referred to by the code are not used. In our opinion, the Code Regulations re 5 are also
tailored to large international DAX corporations, However, not to a medium-sized company with a limited number of ordinary shareholders, some of whom are personally
represented on the supervisory board. The recommendations under point 6 are also not complied with, as the legal regulations are sufficient. In addition, various topics are
regulated here that are also irrelevant to Hermle because of the composition of the preferred shareholders. The recommendations under 7 are not complied with, as fields
that are not relevant, such as stock options, are also regulated, but there are additional cost reasons. Overall, Hermle has chosen due to the relatively lower market
capitalization of the company, the shareholder structure,

However, in addition to all legal regulations, Hermle complies with various individual recommendations of the Code, which are listed below:

3.10 .: Publication of the declaration of conformity on the website for 5 years

4.2.1 .: Board with several people

7.1.1 .: Notification of shareholders and third parties

This declaration is permanently available to the general public for inspection on the Hermle homepage https: / / www.hermle.de/ de / investor relations /
obligedveroeffnahmungen / kodex 161 aktg.

(34) Information on the company's executive bodies

The following people make up the board:

Günther Beck

Franz-Xaver Bernhard

Further mandates in supervisory boards and supervisory bodies:

Member of the supervisory board of VOLLMER Werke Maschinenfabrik GmbH, Biberach / Riss

Benedikt Hermle

The following persons form the supervisory board:

Dietmar Hermle, chairman of the supervisory board

Entrepreneur, formerly spokesman for the board of the Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG

Further mandates in supervisory boards and supervisory bodies:

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Hermle WWE (Worldwide Export) AG, Neuhausen / Switzerland

Lothar Hermle, Deputy Chairman
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Industrial master

Dr. Sonja Zobl-Leibinger, Deputy Chairwoman

Lawyer

Further mandates in supervisory boards and supervisory bodies:

Chairwoman of the Supervisory Board of AdCapital AG, Tuttlingen

Dr. Wolfgang Kuhn

Spokesman for the Management Board of Südwestbank AG, Stuttgart until September 2nd, 2019

Further mandates in supervisory boards and supervisory bodies:

Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Concept AG, Stuttgart, since December 5, 2019

Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board of KIWI Financial Living AG, Heidelberg until June 30, 2019

Chairman of the Advisory Board of Vertiva Family Office GmbH, Stuttgart, until February 26, 2019

Gerd Grewin 

Works Council Chairman

Industrial master, control and regulation technician

Andreas Borho 

Industrial clerk

Günther Leibinger, honorary member

Entrepreneur

 elected employee representatives 

(35) Assurance by the legal representative (balance sheet oath)

To the best of our knowledge, we assure that in accordance with the accounting principles to be applied, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the asset, financial and earnings position and that in the joint management report of Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG and the Group, the course of business, including
the business results and the position of the Group are shown so that a picture that corresponds to the actual circumstances is conveyed, and the essential opportunities and
risks of the expected development are described.

 

Gosheim, April 7, 2020

Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG

Günther Beck

Franz-Xaver Bernhard

Benedikt Hermle

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG, Gosheim

NOTE ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE COMBINED MANAGEMENT REPORT

Examination Opinions

We have the consolidated financial statements of Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG, Gosheim, and its subsidiaries (the Group) - consisting of the consolidated balance
sheet as of December 31, 2019, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the financial year from January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019 as well as the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting methods.

In addition, we have audited the group management report of Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG, which has been combined with the company's management report
(hereinafter: combined management report), for the financial year from January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019. In accordance with German legal regulations, we have not
audited the content of the components of the combined management report named in the "Other information" section of our auditor's report.

In our opinion, based on the knowledge gained during the audit

- The attached consolidated financial statements comply in all material respects with the IFRS as they are to be applied in the EU, and the additional German legal
regulations to be applied according to § 315e Abs. 1 HGB and give a true and fair view of the asset and financial situation in compliance with these regulations
of the group as of December 31, 2019 and its earnings position for the financial year from January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019 and

- the attached combined management report gives an overall accurate picture of the Group's position. In all material respects, this combined management report is
consistent with the consolidated financial statements, complies with German legal regulations and accurately presents the opportunities and risks of future
development. Our audit opinion on the combined management report does not cover the content of the "Other information" section Components of the group
management report.

In accordance with Section 322 (3) sentence 1 of the German Commercial Code (HGB), we declare that our audit has not led to any objections to the correctness of the
consolidated financial statements and the combined management report.

Basis for the examination results

*

*

*)
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We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements and the combined management report in accordance with Section 317 of the German Commercial Code
(HGB) and the EU Auditor Ordinance (No. 537/2014; hereinafter "EU-APrVO"), taking into account the German principles established by the Institut der
Wirtschaftsprüfer (IDW) proper final audit carried out. Our responsibility under these regulations and principles is further described in the section "Responsibility of the
auditor for the audit of the consolidated financial statements and the combined management report" of our auditor's report. We are independent of the group companies in
accordance with European and German commercial and professional regulations and have fulfilled our other German professional obligations in accordance with these
requirements. In addition, we declare in accordance with Article 10 Paragraph 2 Letter f) of the EU Audit Regulation that we have not provided any prohibited non-audit
services in accordance with Article 5 Paragraph 1 of the EU Audit Regulation. We are of the opinion that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and suitable to
serve as a basis for our audit opinions on the consolidated financial statements and the combined management report.

Particularly important audit matters in the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Particularly important audit matters are those matters which, in our professional judgment, were the most significant in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
for the financial year from January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019. These matters were taken into account in connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and in forming our audit opinion on them; we do not issue a separate audit opinion on these matters.

From our point of view, the following issues were most significant in our audit:

1. Valuation of inventories

2. Recognition and valuation of other provisions

We have structured our presentation of these particularly important audit matters as follows:

a. Facts and problems

b. Audit approach and findings

c. Reference to further information

We present the particularly important audit issues below:

1. Valuation of inventories

a. Facts and problems

In the consolidated financial statements of Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG, inventories totaling EUR 73.9 million are shown under the balance sheet item
"Inventories". Inventory assets are valued at acquisition cost or production cost or the lower net realizable value. The determination of the net realizable values   depends to
a large extent on the estimates and assumptions of the legal representatives. Since there is a risk that the valuation of the inventories is not within an appropriate range,
from our point of view this matter was of particular importance in the context of the audit.

b. Audit approach and findings

As part of our audit, we first verified the methodical procedure for determining the net realizable value. Furthermore, we have assessed the appropriateness of the main
estimates and assumptions made by the legal representatives on the basis of the past.

In addition, we have convinced ourselves that the result of the inventory valuation is correctly recorded in the consolidated financial statements, i.e. that the inventories are
recognized at the lower of acquisition costs or production costs or net realizable value.

In doing so, we were able to convince ourselves that the determination of the net realizable value was carried out correctly and that the estimates and assumptions made by
the legal representatives were adequately documented and justified.

c. Reference to further information

The company's information on the valuation of inventories is contained in section (6) "Accounting and valuation principles" and in section (9) "Inventories".

2. Recognition and valuation of other provisions

a. Facts and problems

In the consolidated financial statements of Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG, other provisions totaling EUR 47.3 million are shown under the balance sheet items
"Long-term provisions" and "Short-term provisions". From our point of view, this issue was of particular importance, as the approach and valuation of this item, which is
significant in terms of amount, are based to a large extent on assessments and assumptions made by the company's legal representatives.

b. Audit approach and findings

With the knowledge that there is an increased risk of incorrect information in the accounting for estimated values   and that the recognition and valuation decisions of the
legal representatives have a direct effect on the consolidated result, we assessed the appropriateness of the values. Among other things, we assessed the contractual basis,
cost estimates and the existence of factual obligations with regard to the approach and evaluation of obligations.

In doing so, we were able to convince ourselves that the estimates and assumptions made by the legal representatives are sufficiently documented and justified to justify
the recognition and valuation of the other provisions, which are significant in terms of amount.

c. Reference to further information

The company's information on other provisions is contained in Section (6) "Accounting and valuation principles" and Section (15) "Provisions".

Other Information

The legal representatives are responsible for the other information. The other information includes the following information we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's
report:

- the separate non-financial report in accordance with Section 289b (3) and Section 315b (3) HGB contained in the first paragraph of the combined management
report,

- the corporate governance declaration in accordance with Section 289f and Section 315d of the German Commercial Code (HGB) contained in the section
"Declaration on corporate governance",

- the insurance according to Section 297 (2) sentence 4 HGB for the annual financial statements and the insurance according to Section 315 (1) sentence 5 HGB
for the combined management report.
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The other information also includes the remaining parts of the annual report that is expected to be made available to us after this date, with the exception of the audited
consolidated financial statements, the audited combined management report and our auditor's report.

Our audit opinions on the consolidated financial statements and the combined management report do not extend to the other information, and accordingly we do not
express an audit opinion or any other form of audit conclusions thereon.

In connection with our audit, it is our responsibility to read the other information and, in doing so, to assess whether the other information

- have material inconsistencies with the consolidated financial statements, the combined management report or our knowledge obtained during the audit or

- otherwise appear materially misrepresented.

Responsibility of the legal representatives and the Supervisory Board for the consolidated financial statements and the combined management report

The legal representatives are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, which comply with the IFRS, as they are to be applied in the EU, and
the additional German legal regulations to be applied according to § 315e Abs. 1 HGB in all essential respects, and for that the consolidated financial statements under
Compliance with these regulations provides a true and fair view of the Group's asset, financial and earnings position. In addition, the legal representatives are responsible
for the internal controls that they have determined to be necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatements,
whether intended or not.

When preparing the consolidated financial statements, the legal representatives are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
Furthermore, they are responsible for disclosing matters relating to the going concern of the company, if relevant. In addition, they are responsible for the going concern
basis of accounting, unless the intention is to liquidate the group or to cease operations or there is no realistic alternative.

In addition, the legal representatives are responsible for the preparation of the combined management report, which as a whole provides a suitable view of the Group's
position and is in all material respects consistent with the consolidated financial statements, complies with German legal requirements and applies the opportunities and
risks of future development represents. Furthermore, the legal representatives are responsible for the precautions and measures (systems) that they have deemed necessary
to enable the preparation of a group management report in accordance with the applicable German legal regulations,

The Supervisory Board is responsible for monitoring the Group's accounting process for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and the combined
management report.

Auditor's responsibility for the audit of the consolidated financial statements and the combined management report

Our objective is to obtain sufficient certainty as to whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free of material - intended or unintentional -
misrepresentation and whether the combined management report as a whole provides an accurate picture of the Group's position and, in all material matters, the
consolidated financial statements as well as is consistent with the knowledge gained during the audit, complies with German legal regulations and correctly presents the
opportunities and risks of future development, as well as issuing an auditor’s report that includes our audit opinions on the consolidated financial statements and the
combined management report.

Sufficient security is a high level of security, but no guarantee that an audit carried out in accordance with Section 317 of the German Commercial Code (HGB) and the
EU-APrVO in compliance with the German principles of proper auditing established by the Institute of Auditors (IDW) will always reveal a material misrepresentation .
Misrepresentations can result from violations or inaccuracies and are regarded as material if it could reasonably be expected that they individually or collectively influence
the economic decisions of addressees made on the basis of these consolidated financial statements and the combined management report.

During the examination, we exercise due discretion and maintain a critical attitude. Furthermore

- We identify and assess the risks of material - intentional or unintentional - misrepresentations in the consolidated financial statements and the combined
management report, plan and carry out audit procedures in response to these risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and suitable to serve as a basis for
our audit opinions. The risk that material misrepresentations are not detected is higher in the case of violations than inaccuracies, since violations can involve
fraudulent cooperation, forgeries, intentional incompleteness, misleading representations or the overriding of internal controls.

- We gain an understanding of the internal control system relevant to the audit of the consolidated financial statements and the provisions and measures relevant to
the audit of the combined management report in order to plan audit procedures that are appropriate under the given circumstances, but not with the aim of
achieving an audit opinion on effectiveness of these systems of society.

- we assess the appropriateness of the accounting methods used by the legal representatives as well as the acceptability of the estimated values   presented by the
legal representatives and related information.

- we draw conclusions about the appropriateness of the going concern accounting principle applied by the legal representatives and, on the basis of the audit
evidence obtained, whether there is any material uncertainty in connection with events or circumstances, the significant doubts about the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern can raise. If we come to the conclusion that there is material uncertainty, we are obliged to draw attention to the relevant information
in the consolidated financial statements and in the combined management report in the auditor’s report or, if this information is inappropriate, to modify our
respective audit opinion. We draw our conclusions based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. Future events or circumstances
can, however, mean that the group can no longer continue its business activities.

- We assess the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the information, as well as whether the consolidated
financial statements present the underlying business transactions and events in such a way that the consolidated financial statements take into account the IFRS
as they are to be applied in the EU, and the supplementary according to § 315e Paragraph 1 of the German Commercial Code (HGB) provides a true and fair
view of the Group's asset, financial and earnings position.

- We obtain sufficient suitable audit evidence for the accounting information of the companies or business activities within the group in order to issue audit
opinions on the consolidated financial statements and the combined management report. We are responsible for guiding, monitoring and performing the group
audit. We are solely responsible for our audit opinions.

- We assess the consistency of the combined management report with the consolidated financial statements, its compliance with the law and the picture it provides
of the Group's position.

- we perform audit procedures on the future-oriented information presented by the legal representatives in the combined management report. On the basis of
sufficient, suitable audit evidence, we particularly review the significant assumptions underlying the future-oriented information from the legal representatives
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and assess the appropriate derivation of the future-oriented information from these assumptions. We do not issue an independent audit opinion on the future-
oriented information or the underlying assumptions. There is a significant unavoidable risk

Among other things, we discuss with those responsible for monitoring the planned scope and timing of the audit as well as significant audit findings, including any
deficiencies in the internal control system that we discover during our audit.

We issue a declaration to those responsible for monitoring that we have complied with the relevant independence requirements and discuss with them all relationships and
other matters that can reasonably be assumed to affect our independence and the protective measures taken in this regard .

From the matters that we discussed with those responsible for monitoring, we determine those matters that were most significant in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current reporting period and are therefore the most important audit matters. We describe these matters in the auditor's report, unless laws or other legal
provisions preclude public disclosure of the matter.

OTHER LEGAL AND OTHER LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

Other information according to Article 10 EU-APrVO

We were elected as group auditor by the Annual General Meeting on July 3, 2019. We were engaged by the Supervisory Board on July 4, 2019. We have been the group
auditor of Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG without interruption since the 1990 financial year.

We declare that the audit opinions contained in this auditor's report are consistent with the additional report to the Supervisory Board in accordance with Article 11 of the
EU Audit Regulation (audit report).

RESPONSIBLE AUDITOR

The auditor responsible for the audit is Mr. Andreas K. Wiedmann.

 

Stuttgart, April 7, 2020

BANSBACH GmbH  
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft  

Steuerberatungsgesellschaft

Johannes Hauser, auditor

Andreas K. Wiedmann, auditor

Supervisory Board Report

Dear Sir or Madam, Dear Shareholders,

In 2019, Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG was able to slightly increase sales and operating profit again despite the increasingly difficult market environment. The
uncertain global conditions have already led to a significant decline in demand in the entire machine tool industry.

Cooperation between the Board of Management and the Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board again provided advice to the Management Board in the year under review and monitored the management of the company constructively and
carefully. All tasks assigned to us by law and the articles of association were meticulously carried out. The Management Board kept us regularly informed in detail and
promptly by means of written and verbal reports about the situation and development of the company, important business transactions and corporate planning as well as the
associated opportunities and risks. Deviations from the plans were discussed in detail.

In the Supervisory Board meetings we dealt extensively with the course of business and all topics and events that are important for the company. These included in
particular the financial and earnings position, developments in the personnel area, corporate planning including financial, investment and personnel planning as well as
business policy and strategy. We were involved in all major decisions at an early stage. If the approval of the Supervisory Board was necessary for individual transactions
or measures, we made our resolutions on the basis of extensive documents and in-depth discussions.

Board meetings and committees

In the year under review, five regular Supervisory Board meetings took place on March 20, April 25, July 3 (2 meetings) and December 4. The entire Supervisory Board
was present at all of the meetings. As in previous years, a presidential committee was formed to which the chairman of the supervisory board and the two deputies belong.
It was not necessary to convene the committee in the year under review.

Main focus of the work of the Supervisory Board in 2019

In the Supervisory Board meetings we regularly dealt with the situation in our sales markets, the situation of Hermle AG and the subsidiaries, the development of the new
machine and service business and the development of earnings. In addition, we kept ourselves informed about current issues in the personnel area. Various projects for the
further development of our locations were also constantly on the agenda.

On the occasion of the first Supervisory Board meeting on March 20, 2019, we also dealt in detail with the preliminary figures for the 2018 financial year and discussed
the dividend proposal. Other focal points were construction and renovation measures at the company's headquarters in Gosheim, as well as the possible relocation of parts
of production to the new Zimmer location and corresponding building investments. We also found out about the expansion of foreign activities, in particular the start of
service business at the second Russian Hermle location, the preparations for the expansion of our US branch and the planned establishment of new subsidiaries in Mexico
and Thailand. Since the legally binding change of our auditor is due in 2020, we also discussed the necessary tendering modalities and the selection process. In addition,
the Supervisory Board resolved the declaration on corporate governance in accordance with Sections 289f and 315d of the German Commercial Code.

The Supervisory Board meeting on April 25, 2019 was dominated by the 2018 annual financial statements. The auditors invited to this date reported comprehensively on
the financial statements and were available to provide further information. After extensive discussion, the Supervisory Board adopted the annual financial statements of
Hermle AG and approved the consolidated financial statements and the joint management report. We resolved the dividend proposal and the report of the Supervisory
Board for the 2018 financial year and adopted the agenda for the 2019 Annual General Meeting. In addition, the Management Board reported on various site development
projects, which we discussed in depth. The focus was on a master plan for the Zimmer location, which includes the relocation of sheet metal production there, as well as
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possible options for expanding the technology and training center and building a staff canteen in Gosheim. Additional topics were the progress made at our branches in
Russia and the USA.

On July 3, 2019, the Supervisory Board met for two meetings, which took place before and after the Annual General Meeting. In addition to the items at the Annual
General Meeting, the various projects for site development were once again on the agenda.

The Supervisory Board approved the construction of a new building for sheet metal production in rooms and the subsequent relocation of this area. We also agreed to
begin with the specific planning for a new multi-purpose building in Gosheim, which among other things offers space for the expansion of the technology and training
center and a new staff canteen. Depending on the further economic development, the implementation of this project is to begin at the earliest after the sheet metal
production has moved to Zimmer and the subsequent modernization and relocation measures in Gosheim have been completed. Further investments in Hermle machines
and a new large machining center for machining were also approved. In addition, the Management Board informed us about the establishment of the Mexican subsidiary,
which was scheduled for the end of July. Finally, the Supervisory Board decided to put the auditing of the financial statements out to tender from 2020. An audit
committee was not set up. Instead, the chairman of the supervisory board was given the task of accompanying the selection process. public tendering for the final
examination from 2020. An audit committee was not set up. Instead, the chairman of the supervisory board was tasked with accompanying the selection process. public
tendering for the final examination from 2020. An audit committee was not set up. Instead, the chairman of the supervisory board was given the task of accompanying the
selection process.

The main topic of the meeting on December 4, 2019 was the budget, sales and investment planning for 2020, which also includes a sensitivity calculation for a possible
crisis scenario. In connection with the budget and the various construction projects, the Board of Management also explained the likely development of liquidity. We
discussed the planning intensively and adopted it. We also agreed to continue the preparations for the new multi-purpose building at the Gosheim location until the
building application was submitted, and we basically approved the acquisition of adjacent properties there, provided they are for sale at market prices. With regard to the
quota of women on the Executive Board, the Supervisory Board decided to extend the existing target by the 30th November 2024 to be maintained. We also adopted the
Corporate Governance Declaration, which is permanently available on the Hermle website under the heading Stock Exchange / Information for Shareholders / Mandatory
Publications / Codex Section 161 AktG.

annual audit

The annual general meeting on July 3, 2019 elected the auditing and tax consultancy company Bansbach GmbH, Stuttgart, as the auditor for the 2019 financial year. The
Supervisory Board then commissioned the company with the audit. The auditors assured that they did not perform any significant services for Maschinenfabrik Berthold
Hermle AG in addition to this contract in the year under review and that there were no circumstances that could affect their independence.

The annual financial statements of Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG prepared in accordance with the provisions of the German Commercial Code and the
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS as well as the combined management report of the AG and the group for the 2019 financial year were
audited by Bansbach GmbH. The audit was carried out in accordance with Section 317 of the German Commercial Code (HGB) and the EU Auditor Ordinance and in
compliance with the German principles of proper auditing established by the Institute of Auditors. The auditors confirmed that the financial statements give an actual
picture of the company's asset, financial and earnings position and that the management report accurately depicts the opportunities and risks of future development.

The annual financial statements of Hermle AG, the consolidated financial statements, the combined management report and the audit reports were made available to all
members of the Supervisory Board in good time. We also checked the documents ourselves and discussed them with the auditors at the balance sheet meeting. Our own
examination gave no cause for objection. We agree with the auditor's findings and approve the annual financial statements and the management report. The annual
financial statements of Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG are thereby adopted. The Supervisory Board has also examined the non-financial declaration in accordance
with Sections 289b and 315b of the German Commercial Code (HGB) and is satisfied that it meets the legal requirements.

In the current year, Maschinenfabrik Berthold Hermle AG is facing demanding tasks in view of the worsening economic slowdown caused by the corona pandemic and
numerous other external risk factors. In this situation, the concept of the breathing company, which has already been successfully tested in several economic crises and
with which we can cushion fluctuations in demand, helps us. Another important factor for the stability of Hermle are the highly motivated and competent employees. On
behalf of the Supervisory Board, I would like to thank the entire Hermle team for their excellent work and wish them every success in the challenging year 2020.

 

Gosheim, April 2020

Dietmar Hermle, chairman of the supervisory board


